
CHARLES BRENT STEWART

JEFFREY A . KEEVIL

Mr. Dale Hardy Roberts
Executive Secretary/Chief Regulatory Law Judge
Missouri Public Service Commission
P .O. Box 360
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102

Re:

	

MGC Communications, Inc . (CLEC Application)

Dear Mr . Roberts :

Please find enclosed for filing in the above-referenced case an original and fourteen
copies of the verified Application For A Certificate of Service Authority And For Competitive
Classification filed on behalf of MGC Communications, Inc . A copy of this filing has been
sent this date to the General Counsel's Office and the Office of the Public Counsel . Thank
you.

Sincerely,

ItPMA %wuti1
Brent Stewart
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Office of the Public Counsel
Louis Grimmelbein

STEWART & KEEVIL, L.L.C .
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

	

~/
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

SAN
In the Matter of the Application of

	

)

	

2o '?,990
MGC Communications, Inc . for

	

)

	

3®Aj4iisso
r/ pa Certificate of Service Authority to

	

)

	

Case No . TA- 2000 - 45

	

Gph~~~~leson
provide Basic Local Telecommunications

	

)

	

~
Service in portions of the State of Missouri )
and for Competitive Classification .

	

)

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE AUTHORITY
AND FOR COMPETITIVE CLASSIFICATION

Comes now MGC Communications, Inc . ("Applicant" or "MGC"), by its undersigned

counsel, and hereby applies pursuant to sections 392 .361, 392.420, 392 .430 and 392 .440 RSMo

1994, 392 .410, 392 .450 RSMo Supp . 1999, and 4 CSR 240-2 .060, for authority to provide resold

and facilities-based basic local telecommunications service in portions of the State of Missouri and

to classify said service and the company as competitive . In support of its Verified Application,

Applicant states as follows :

1 .

	

MGC is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of

the State of Nevada and is duly authorized to do business in Missouri . Pursuant to the relevant

provisions of 4 CSR 240-2 .060, a certificate from the Missouri Secretary of State's Office is

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as AppendixA. Applicant's principal place

of business is 171 Sully's Trail, Suite 202, Pittsford, New York, 14534 and its telephone number

is (716) 218-6556 .

2 . All correspondence, communications, pleadings, notices, orders and decisions relating

to this Application should be addressed to :



addressed to :

Charles Brent Stewart, Esq.
Stewart & Keevil, L.L.C .
1001 Cherry Street
Suite 302
Columbia, Missouri 65201
(573) 499-0635
(573) 499-0638 (fax)

All inquiries or communications regarding Applicant's ongoing operations should be

Richard E. Heatter, Esq.
Senior Vice President, Legal Department
171 Sully's Trail
Suite 202
Pittsford, New York 14534
(716) 218-6556
(718) 218-0165 (fax)

Douglas G . Bonner, Esq.
Louis J . Grimmelbein, Esq.
Arent Fox Kintner Plotkin & Kahn, PLLC
1050 Connecticut Avenue
Washington, D.C . 20036
(202) 857-6000
(202) 857-6395 (fax)

3 . By this Application, Applicant requests a certificate of authority to provide competitive

facilities-based and resold basic local exchange services to customers throughout all the exchanges

currently served by Southwestern Bell Telephone Company ("SWBT"), GTE Midwest, Inc .

("GTE"), and Sprint of Missouri ("Sprint") . The specific SWBT, GTE and Sprint exchanges within

which Applicant proposes to offer service are listed in these incumbents' respective local exchange

tariffs, relevant copies of which are attached hereto and are incorporated herein by reference as

Appendix B. Applicant's proposed service areas will follow the respective exchange boundaries

of the stated incumbent LECs and shall be no smaller than an exchange as required by Section

392 .455(3) RSMo Supp. 1999 . Applicant may seek authorization to provide service in exchanges

served by other incumbent LECs in a subsequent proceeding .

4 . Applicant intends to offer and provide resold and facilities-based basic local

telecommunications services to business customers and may, in the future, additionally offer services

2



to residential customers, Applicant's basic local services will include, but will not be limited to, the

following: basic dial tone lines, business x-DSL service, payphones, basic private branch exchange

("PBX") trunks and direct inward dial trunks ("DID"), digital PBX and DID, and centrex -type

system lines . Applicant will deploy its own facilities network Applicant will employ a regional

switching architecture to serve its Missouri customers . Applicant plans to deploy state-of-the-art

transmission and multiplexor equipment in each of the incumbent LEC's central offices in which

it is located .

Once Applicant's Application is granted, Applicant plans to commence offering basic local

service upon receiving Commission approval ofits interconnection agreement(s) and related tariffs .

5 .

	

Applicant possesses the technical and managerial expertise and experience necessary

to provide the services it proposes as required by Section 392 .455(1) RSMo Supp. 1999 .

	

More

specifically, MGC's technical and managerial qualifications are demonstrated by the professional

backgrounds ofkey members ofits executive staffas described in Appendix C attached hereto and

incorporated herein .

6 .

	

Applicant possesses the necessary financial qualifications to provide the services it

proposes as required by Section 392.455(1) RSMo Supp . 1999 .

	

MGC has access to the financing

and capital necessary to provide the telecommunication services described in this Application . In

support of MGC's Application attached to this Application as AppendixD is MGC's audited 1998

10-K Annual report and a current Balance Sheet and Income Statement for MGC, effective as of

September 30, 1999 . Specifically, the attached documentation indicates that MGC has raised and

has the capacity to raise substantial funding through public or private debt and equity placements

to provide the telecommunication services described in this Application .
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7. Pursuant to this Application, Applicant also seeks classification of itself and of its new

basic local telecommunications service offerings as competitive, with accompanying reduced

regulation pursuant to Sections 392.361 and 392.420 RSMo 1999 and 4 CSR 240-2.060(4)(F) . The

existing monopoly services of SWBT, GTE and Sprint will make the basic local markets Applicant

seeks to enter sufficiently competitive to make a lesser degree of regulation for Applicant and its

proposed services in the public interest, consistent with the legislative policies established by the

federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 and the recent revisions to Chapter 392 RSMo . This

Commission already has approvednumerous applications to provide resold and facilities-based basic

local telecommunications services filed by new market entrants and has classified those new entrants

and their services as competitive .

8 . Applicant will offer basic local telecommunications service as a separate and distinct

service in accordance with Section 392.455(4) RSMo Supp. 1999 . Applicant will provide equitable

access for all customers in Missouri, without regard to their income or where they might reside, to

affordable telecommunications services in Applicant's proposed service areas in accordance with

Section 392.455(5) RSMo Supp . 1999 .

9 . Applicant is willing to comply with all applicable Commission rules and is willing to

meet all relevant service standards including, but not limited to, quality of service, billing, and tariff

filing and maintenance .

	

Consistent with the Commission's treatment of other certificated

competitive local exchange telecommunications companies, Applicant requests that, at minimum,

the following statutes and regulations for Applicant and its proposed basic local exchange service

offerings be waived at this time :



10 .

	

Applicant further requests a temporary waiver of 4 CSR 240-2.060(4)(H). This rule

requires that an application for a certificate of service authority to provide interexchange, local

exchange or basic local exchange service shall include a proposed tariff with a forty-five day

effective date . Applicant finds it impossible at this time to develop tariffs to fully comply with this

rule since Applicant has not yet executed or received Commission approval of any interconnection

agreement with the incumbent LECs . At such time as all facts necessary for the development of

such tariffs are known to Applicant, it will promptly file same bearing athirty day effective date with

the Commission in a manner consistent with what Applicant believes to be recent Commission

practice in similar cases .

11 . Applicant submits that the public interest will be served by Commission approval ofthis

Application because Applicant's proposed services will create and enhance competition and expand

customer service options, consistent with the legislative goals set forth in the Telecommunications

Act of 1996 and Chapter 392 RSMo. Prompt approval of this Application also will expand the

availability ofinnovative, high-quality and reliable telecommunications services within the State of

Missouri . Customers will benefit by having alternatives from which to choose and from general

improvements in price, features and options that are generated by competitive market pressures .

5

STATUTES REGULATIONS

392.210.2 4 CSR 240-10.020
392.270 4 CSR 240-30.040
392.280 4 CSR 240-35
392 .290.1
392 .300.2
392 .310
392 .320
392 .330
392.340



WHEREFORE, Applicant MGC Communications, Inc . respectfully requests that the

Commission grant it a certificate of service authority to provide resold and facilities-based basic

local telecommunications service as herein requested, classify Applicant and Applicant's proposed

basic local services as competitive, and grant waivers of the aforesaid statutes and regulations, as

expeditiously as possible .

Respectfully submitted,

Missouri Counsel :

DougrasIG . Bonner, Esq.
(D .C.~Bfir #384060; Fla Bar #376825)
ArentYox Kintner Plotkin & Kahn, PLLC
1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C . 20036
Tel :

	

(202) 857-6293
Fax:

	

(202) 857-6395

cti alc,
Charles

	

rent Stewart #34885
Stewart & Keevil, L .L.C .
1001 Cherry Street, Suite 302
Columbia, Missouri 65201
(573) 499-0635

ATTORNEYS FOR APPLICANT
MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.



STATE OF
VERIFICATION

COUNTY OF MT'K

	

)

I, R,CMRD ~*EhTtP-, being duly swom, declare that I am the VtcE P"S LEC-AL ofMGC
Communications, Inc ., the Applicant in the subject proceeding ; that I have read the foregoing
Application and know the contents thereof; that the same are true of my knowledge, except as to
matters which are therein stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them
to be true.

Sworn to and Subscribed to before me
this the -15~hay of January, 2000

PublicPublic
State of l~

My Commission Expires :

	

-I 1 -0 .1

w
By:

	

l
Name: RtcI-WRP

	

r1~ATTe2
Title : V l cat- FPLc fPEM, z-£CAL-,

Notary ptIblic - State of NeveC8

CO'1NTY OF CLARK

KRISTEN LANGENBERGER
'°u,amfkrms~-11



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing Application, along with its
verification and appendices, was sent to the PSC's General Counsel's Office and the Office of the
Public Counsel by placing same in the United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, or by hand-
delivery, this,eday ofJanuary, 2000 .

By:
Name: Charles Brent Stewart,



APPENDIX A

Authority to Transact Business in Missouri



Sent by : MOC Comm/Legal Dept

No . P00477826~. .__
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CORPORATION DIVISION - CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

!gHEREAS,
MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC-

USING IN MISSOURI THE NAME
MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC .

HAS COMPLIED WITH THE GENERAL AND BUSINESS CCRPORATIn~
WHICH GOVERNS FOREIGN CORPORATIONS ; BY FILING

	

Orr .
OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF MISSOURI AUTHENTICATED ZVIDENCEE
OF ITS INCORPORATION AND GOOD STANDING UNDER THE LAWS 07 T'E
STATE of NEVADA .

NO", THEREFORE, I, REBECCA McDOWELL COOK, SECRETARY OF
STATE OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY -';AT SAID
CORPORATION IS FROM THIS DATE DULY AUTHORIZZD TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS

	

IN THIS STATE, AND IS ENTITLED TO X-1

	

R1IGHTS AN'.'
P? � VILEGES GRANTED TO FOREIGN CORPORATIONS UNDER -t=-HENERAL
AND BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW OF MISSOURI-

Rebecca McDowell Cook
Secretary of State

' IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE SET MY
HAND AND IMPRINTED THE GREAT SEAL OF
THE STATE OF MISSOURI, ON THIS, THE

i 22ND DAY OF DECEMBER, 1999-
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's. . .
" aA~r `d. .'
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°Z~-rs$1. , ,_ . . .
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APPENDIX B

LISTING OF EXCHANGES



i-A-II_,- I r.- 19'3F-.

	

16 : 4e

Principal Zone(2)

No supplement to t.his
tariff will be issued
except for the purpose
of canceling this tariff .

1 .3 EXCHANGES BY RATE GROUP-(Continued)

1 .3 .4 Rate Group D(1)

Kansas City Metropolitan Exchange

Metropolitan
Calling Area-1 Zones
Gladstone(2)
Independence(2)
Parkville(2)
Raytown(2)
South Kansas City(2)

Metropolitan
Calling Area-2 Zones
Belton(2)
Blue Springs(2)
East Independence(2)
Lee's Summit(2)
Liberty(2)
Nashua(2)

(CP1 Tiffany Springs(2)

(1) See Paragraph 1 .1 .3, preceding .
(2) One-party service only available .

Issued : FEB 2 9 1996

P .S .C . Mo .-No 24

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

By HORACE WILKINS, JP , President-Misaouti
Southwestern Bell Telephone

'St . Louis, Missouri

314 ?~ I
	

1 :811?

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF
92nd Revised Sheet 9

Replacing 91st Revised Sheet 9

St . Louis MAtr

	

KCe88i~~'08% mission
Principal Zone (2)

Metropolitan
Calling Area-1 Zones
Ferguson(2)
Ladue(2)
Mehlville(2)
Overland(2)
Riverview(2)
Sappington(2)
Webster Groves(2)

Metropolitan
Calling Area-2 Zones
Bridgeton(2)
Creve Coeur(2)
Florissant(2)
Kirkwood(2)

(CP) Oakville(21
Spanish Lake(2)

Effective :

	

MAR 3 0 1996

IED

FEB 2 9 i996

FILED

MAR 3 0 1996

M0. PIBUCSERVICE COMM



RUC,_lE.-1'IyE 16 :4 :

	

11111 PUB ;EPUICE GIMM

P .S .C . Mo .-No . 24
No supplement to this
tariff will be issued
except for the Purpoac
of canceling this tariff .

(AT) 1 .3 EXCHANGES BY RATE GROOP .(Continued)

(FC) 1 .3 .3 Rate Group C(2)

SnrinvField ><otropolitonC.,~hangc

Principal Zone
-Principal Zone Base Rate Area(3)

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

Metropolitan Calling-Area-1 JMCA-11 Zones

Fair Grove(31
Nixa(1)(3)
Republic(1)(3)
Rogersville(3)
Strafford(3)
Willard(3)

(1) Extended Area Service - See Paragraph 1 .4 .
(2) See Paragraph 1 .1 .3, preceding .
(3) One-party service only available .

Issued :
1 2 1994

Effective .

By HORACE WILKINS . JR . . president-Hissouri
Southwestern Bell Telephone

St Louis . Missouri

1~1 ^51 187'1 F' . 1`" . 16

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF
32nd Revised Sheet 8

Replacing 3181. Revised 51,eet 8

-~i

UE f'V S

Mo. PUA

EILEE
JAN I 'I '19S5

nnlSSfll tR(

JA?1hgcPqW Commission



Riu_,- l c: 19'3.

	

16: 4^

No supplement to this
tariff will be issued
except for the purpose
of canceling this tariff .

(CP)

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Issued :

Mil PUS SERI!(CE 1_nf1M

P .S .C . Mo .-No 24

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

1 .3 EXCHANCES BY RATE GROUP-(Continued)

1 .3 .2 Rate Group B(4)

By HORACE WILKINS . JR ., President-Missouri
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company

St . Louis, Missouri

X14 7°-) 1~:4 P . 14 : 1F.

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF
65th Revised Sheet 7

Replacing 64th Revised Sheet 7

Extended Area Servirtr - caO Paragraph 1 .4 .
Message Rate Business Service obsolete-limited to existing CUSAftr$ o 1996
Message Rate Business Service not offered .
See Paragraph 1 .1 .3, preceding .
One-party service only available .

	

MO.PI.BWSERViCECOMM

FE13 2 9 1996

	

effective :

	

MAR 3 0 7996

f: S ~ 1if Vs F1 (~ G. IA

FEB '29 i996

MISSOURI
Public Service Commission

FILED

Lwl .e O-h O.~5< D...- ..1 .
Cape Girardeau(1)(2)(5) Manchester(1)(5)
Carthage(2) (5) Marshall(2)(5)
Cedar Hill(1)(2)(5) Maxville(1)(5)
Chesterfield(1)(5) Mexico(2)(5)
rhiIIi,pnrh4(2)(5) Monctt(i) (3) ( :)
DeSoto(1)(2)(5) Moberly(1)(2)(5)
Dexter(1) (2) (5) Neosho(2)(5)
Eldon(1) (3) (5) Nevada(1) (2) (5)
Excelsior Springs(5) Pacific(1)(2)(51
Parmington(1)(2)(5) Perryville(1)(2)(5)
Fenton(l) (5) Pond(1) (5)
Festue-Crystal City(1)(2)(5) (CP) Poplar Bluff(1)(2)(5)
Flat xiver(1)(2)(5) St . Charles(1) (2) (5)
Fulton(2) (5) St . Clair(3)(5)
Gravois Mills(1)(2)(5) St . Joseph(1)(5)
Hannibal(2)(5) Sedalia(2)(5)
Harvester(1)(5) Sikeston(1)(2)(5)
High Ridge(1)(5) Union(1) (2) (5)
Imperial (1) (2) (5) Valley Park(1)(5)
Jackson(l)(2)(5) washington(3)(5)
Joplin(1)(2)(5) webb City (1) (2) (5)
Kennett(1)(2)(5)
Kirksville(2)(5)



Portageville(1) (2) (5)
Puxico(2)(5)
qulin(1) (3) (5)
Richmond(2)(5)
Richwoods(2)(S)
Risco(1) (2) (S)

" to ri1h _.cr"icc "_oint

P .S .C Mo .-No . 24

No supplement to this

	

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF
tariff will be issued

	

39th Revised sheet 6 .o1
except for the purpose

	

Replacing 38th Revised Sheet 6 .ol
of canceling this tariff .

1 .3 EXCHANGES By RATE GROUP-(Continued)

1 .3 .1 Rate Group A-(Continued)(4)

LOCAL 7XCHANGE TARIFF

(1) Extended Area Service - See Paragraph 1 .4 .

	

FILED(2) Message Rate Sueine6s Service not offered .
(3) Message Rate Business Service obsolete - limited to existing customers .
(4)

	

See Paragraph 1 .1 .3,

	

preceding . .

	

1-F o 9(0

	

1996
(5) one-party service only available .

Issued

	

JAN 2 0 1996

	

Effective :

nY :to~cn ~+rLlnlt+~ .

	

_rc . .

	

Pries rdent -Missouri
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company

St . Louis, Missouri

RECEIVED

JAH 19 "~_: J

MISSOURI
Public Service Commission

FEB 2 0 19W. PUBLIC SERVICE COMM

(MT) Rushville(1)(5) Trenton(1)(3)(5)
Montgomery City(1)(2)(5) Ste . Genevieve(1)(2)(5) Tuscumbia(1)
Morehouse(1) (3) (5) St . Marys(1) (3) (5) (3) (5)
New Franklin(l)(3)(5) San Antonio(1)(5) Versailles(1)
New Madrid(1)(2)(5) Scott City(1)(3)(5) (3)(5)
Oak Ridge(1)(3)(S) Senath(1)(3)(5) vienna(2)(5)
Old Appleton(1)j3)(5) Slater(2)(S) Walnut Grove
Oran(l) (2) (5) Smithville(1) (3) (5) (2) (5)

(MT) Starlberry(2) (5) 'Wardell(i) (2) (S)
Patton(2) (5) Ware(1) (3)(5)
Paynesville (1)(,)(5) Wellsville(2) (5)
Pierce City(1) (2) (5) Westphalia_(2) (5)
Pocohontas-New Wells(1)(3)(5) Wyatt(1)(2)(5)

(MT)
Portage Des Sioux(2) (5)



RIJG-1r.-1i9c" 15 :x7

No supplement to this
tariff will be issued
except for the purpose
of canceling this tariff .

i RY(`VT "I!)CC vv Mva anour

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Issued :
FEB 2 9 19%

f10 PUB

	

DERV I CE

	

~_1U1I " 1

P .S C . Mo .-No . 24

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

?l4 -:51 1847

LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF
55th Revised Sheet

Replacing S4th Revised Sheet

FEB 2 9 INo

Extended Area Service - See Paragraph 1 .4 .
Message Rate Business Service not offered .
Message Rate Business Service obsolete - limited to existing custfel;eED
See Paragraph 1 .1 .3, preceding .
One-party service only available .

F- l2 " ' 1E

6
6

Effective :
MAR 3 G 199G

By HORACE W1LKINS, TR ., President-Missouri
Southwestern Bell Telephone Company

	

Mo. PUBUCSFAVICEGOMM'
St . Louis, Missouri

1 .3 .1 Rate Group A(4) MiSSOURI
Public Service Cwnrnlssion

Adrian(1)(2)(5) Carrollton(2)(3)(5) Grain t7Alle) "
Advance(i)(1)(5) Caruthereville(1)(3)(5) (1) (3) (5)
Agency(1)(5) Center(2)(5) Gray Summit(l)(3)(5)
Altenburg-Frohna Chaffee (1) (3) (5) (CP) Greenwood(l) (3)(5)
(1) (2) (5) Charleston(1)(3)(5) Havti (1) (I) (c)
Fu4WUld(1) (J) (5) Clarksville(1)(2)(5) Herculaneum-Pevely
Archie(1) (2) (5) Clever(1)(3)(5) (1)(3)(5)
Argyle (2) (5) (CP) Climax Springs(2)(5) Higbee(ll (3) (5)
Armstrong (1) (2) (5) Deering(1) (3) (5) Hillsboro(l)(3)(5)
Ash Grove (2) (5) DeKalb(1)(5) Holcomb(1) (3)(51
Beaufort(2)(5) Delta(1) (2) (5) Horneraville
Bell City(1)(2)(5) Downing (2) (5) (1) (2) (5)
Henton(1)(3)(5) East Prairie(1)(5) Jasper(2)(5)
Billings(1) (2) (5) Edina(2) (5) Knob Noster(2)(5)
Bismarck(1)(3)(5) Elsberry(1)(2)(5) Lamar (2) (5)
Bloomfield(1)(3)(5) Essex (1) (3) (5) LaMonte(2)(5)
Bloomsdale(1)(2)(5) Eureka (1) (5) Lancaster(2)(5)
Bonne Terre(1)(3)(5) (CP) Farley(2) (5) Leadwood(1)(3)15)
Boonville(1) (2) (5) Fayette(1) (2) (5) Lilbourn(l)(2)(5)
Bowling Green(2)(5) Fisk(1) (3) (5) (CP) Lian(2) (5)
Brookfield(2)(5) Frankford(2)(5) Lockwood(2)(5)
Campbell (2) (5) (CP) Fredericktown(2)(5) Louisiana(1)(2)(5)
Cardwell (1) (2) (5) Freeburg(2) (5) Macke Creek(2)(5)
Carl Junction(1) (3) (5) Gideon(1) (2) (5) Malden(1) (2) (5)

Glasgow(1)0)(S) (CP) Marble H111(2)15)
Marcelinel2)(5)
Marionville(2)(5)
Marston(11(2)(51
Meta(21(5)



gIJG-16-1 . 1yF_. 1, 4E

	

1 "10 PUS SERVILE '=.01'119

G . Local Exchange Listings (Cont'd)

GENERAL AND LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE

( " ) Includes customers in Base Rate Area Alexandria .

Gerald 0 . Harris
Regional Director-External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri

?14 7~1 1047 P .11"IE
Section 4

Original Sheet 15

RECEIVED

MISSOURI

.'ubllcService Commissfor,

Issued : JuIy I, 1994

	

Effective : September 15, 1994

FILED
r 1994

MO. PI!BLIC SEPIIICE GOWN .

1 . Exchange Listings (Includes EAS Points, EAS Rate Component, Rate
Schedule and Rate Group) (Cont'd)

FAS Qato Rata
Exchange Name EAS Points Component Sch./Group

Bus . Res .

Walker Eldorado Springs,
Schell City $3 .65 $3 .65 A-1

Warrenton - - - A-3
Washburn Cassville, Exeter 3 .65 3.65 A-1
Wasola Gainesville,

Theodosia 3 .65 3.65 A-1
Wayland(+) Kahoka .90 .50 A-1
Weaubleau - - - A-1
Wentzville - - - Metro
West Plains - - - A-4
West Qulncy Quincy 3.65 3 .65 A-1
Wheatland - - - A-2
Whitesville Bolckow, Rosendale,

Savannah 10 .55 5.70 A-1
Willow Springs - - - A-2
Winfield Foley, Old Monroe 2 .35 2.35 A-2
Winona - - - A-1
Wooldridpr - - - A-1
Wright City Foristell 1 .90 1 .90 A-2



ti1Ji;-16-199E.

	

11: 1 : 4"

	

IIii PUP. =.EF'l!1,':E 1 .01111

	

'.14 ^°- .1

	

184^

	

F' .11]
Section 4

2nd Revised Sheet 14
Cancels 1st Revised Sheet 14

GENERAL AND LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

Local Exchange Listings (Cont'd)

Issued : July l, 1996

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE

Gerald D . Harris
State Director-External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri

!Q~

Effective :

	

August Vipl

; ;, 1 1996

9'15_14
.mo 90BUCSCRV1C Cmw'

1 . Exchange listings (Includes EAS Points EAS
1411

Ratetl6Rmji11~.!! : .aC~Tf1~TIi
> tt;' ,,i

Schedule and Rate Group) (Cont'd)

EAS Rate Rate
Exchange Name EAS Points Component Sch ./Group

Bus . Res .

Sparta - - - A-2
Stewartsville - - - A-1
Stoutsville - - - A-1
Sturgeon Centralia, Clark $1 .95 31 .05 A-1
Summersville - - - A-2

Thayer Koshkonong, Mammoth
Springs, AR 2 .35 2 .35 A-2

Theodosia Gainesville, Wasola 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
Thomasville Alton 3 .20 3 .20 A-1
Timber - - - A-7
Trimble Plattsburg 4 .15 2 .25 A-1
Troy Hawk Point,

Mncrnw Millc 2 Sn 2 Sn A-3
Truxton - - - A-1
Turney Plattsburg 5.15 2 .80 A-1

Urbana A-2

Van Buren A-2
Vanzant A- I
Vlchy A-1
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rri mv . nu, I

Section 4
Original Sheet 13

RECEIVED
AUG 311994

MISSOURI

)Ublic Service COmm'issfor
1 . Exchange Listings

(Scheduleand Rate Gr

Exchange Name

Raymondville
Reeds Spring
Revere
Roby
Rocheport
Rockaway Beach
Rockville
Rosendale

St . James
St . Peters
Safe
Santa Fe
Sarcoxie
Savannah

Schell City

Seymour
Shelbina
Shelbyville
Sheldon
Shell Knob

Issued :

	

July 1,

	

1994

	

Effective :

	

September15,

	

1994

Gerald 0 . Harris

	

Fit-ED
Regional Director-External Affairs

Wentzville .

	

Missouri

	

$~j

	

l

	

'994

Includes EAS Points, EA5 Rate Component, Rate
up) (Cont'd)

EAS Rate Rate
[AS Points Component Sch./Group

Bus . Res .

Houston $3 .30 $3 .30 A-1
- - - A-2

Kahoka 2.90 2 .90 A-1
Houston 3.45 3 .45 A-1
Columbia 6.15 3.35 A-I

- - - A-2
Schell City 2.00 2 .00 A-1
Rnl,knw Fillmpr?
Savannah, Whitesville 7 .90 4 .25 A-1

Safe .10 .10 A-3
Harvester 1 .00 1 .00 Metro
St . James .75 .75 A-1

- - - A-1
- - - A-2

Amazonia, Avenue
City, Bolckow,
Cosby, Fillmore,
Helena, Rosendale,
Whitesville 2 .60 1 .40 A-3
Eldorado Springs,
Rockville, Walker 3 .65 3 .65 A-1

- - - A-2
- - - A-2
- - - A-1

Milo 2.60 2 .60 A-7
- - - A-2
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1996

ME". ~t(a~ i

	

R -

	

1:

	

OR
Issued : July 1, 1996

	

Effective : August 1, 196

Gerald D . Harris
State Director External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri

FILED

1 1996

95 -1 4 2

1 . Exchange Listings (Includes EAS Points, EAS Rate'),IbtM~~Wj.p

Schedule and Rate Group) (Cont'd)

EAS Rate Rate

Exchange Name [AS Points Component Sch,/Group
Bus . Res .

Nebo A-1

New Melle Metro
Niangua A-1

Norwood A-1

Oates
_ A-1

O'FaIIon - - - Metro

Old Monroe Foley, Winfield $3 .30 $3 .30 A-I

Osborn - - A-I

Osceola - _ _ A_2

Ozark Highlandville 2 .15 2 .15 A-3

Pa Imyra - - - A-2

Paris A-2

Perry -
A-I

Pittsburg - - - A-1

Plattsburg Gower . Trimble,
Turney 1 .80 1 .00 A-2

Potosi - - - A-3

Prairie Home - A-I

Preston - - A-I

Protem Forsyth .75 .75 A-1



AUG- 1r_.-19ic,

	

16:d5.

	

h10 PUB =.EPA! ICE COMM

Section 4
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G . Local Exchange listings (Cont'd)
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1311G SEHUIC
Issued : July l, 1996

	

Effective : August 1, 1996
Gerald D . Harris

State Director-External Affairs
Wentzville, Missouri

1 . Exchange Listings (Includes [AS Points, EAS Ratleh(K-P8RpPg,1'GOA11fSi0 ;-
Schedule and Rate

Exchange Name

Group) (Cont'd)

[AS Points
EAS

Bus .

Rate
Component

Res .

Rate
Sch ./Group

LaBelle - - - A-1
Laddonia - - - A-1
LaGrange - - - A-1
La Plata Elmer 11 .80 $1 .80 A-2
Lawson - - - A-2
Leasburg - - - A-I
Lesterville - - - A-l
Lewistown - - - A-1
Licking A-2
Louisburg - - - A-1
Lowry City - - - A-1

Macon - - - A-3
Manes Grovespring,

Hartville 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
Mano Cassville 3 .65 3 .65 A-2
Mansfield - - - A-2
Marshfield Elkland .90 .90 A-3
Marthasville - - - A-1
Maysville - - - A-2

(D)
(0)

Milo Nevada, Sheldon 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
Monroe City - _ _ A_2
Montouk Perk - - A_1

Monticello _ A_I

Morrison - _ A-.l
Moscow Mills Troy 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
Mount Sterling - - A_1
Mt . Vernon - _ A-3
Mtn . Grove - _ A_3
Mtn . View - NEED
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GENERAL AND LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE

Gerald D . Harris
Regional Director-External Affairs

Wentzville . Missouri

Section 4
Original Sheet 10

RECEIVED
4I.' n . 19614

~ " a

K41SSOURI
?ublic Service Commisslo :

1 " Exchange Listings (Includes EAS Points, EAS Rate Component, Rate
Schedule and Rate Group) (Cont'd)

EAS Rate

	

Rate
Exchange Name

	

EAS Points

	

Component

	

Sch./Group
Bus . Res .

Issued : July 1, 1994

	

Effective : September 15, 1994

FILED

vd .

	

:pi

	

!; JE

	

,nir.

	

.

Hermann
Hermitage
High Hill
Highlandville
Holstein
Nuu~> lun
Humansville

-
-
-

Ozark
-

Raymondville, Rooy
-

-
-
-

$2 .65
-

2 .80
-

-
-
-

$2 .65
-

2 .80
-

A-2
A-1
A-1
A-2
A-1
A-Z
A-2

Hunnewell - - - A-1
Hurley - - - A-1

IrondaIe - - - A-1
Ironton - - - A-3

Jamestown - - - A-1
Jenkins Cassville 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
Jerico Springs - - - A-1
Jonesburg - - - A-1
Kahoka Luray, Revere,

Wayland .95 .50 A-2
Keytesville Dalton 2.35 2.35 A-I
Kidder Cameron, Hamilton 6 .10 3.30 A-1
Kimberling City - - - A-2
Kingston Hamilton 1 .40 .75 A-1
Koshkonong Thayer 3 .15 3 .15 A-1
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G . Local Exchange Listings (Cont'd)

LOCALEXCHANGE SERVICE

lccucd : March 1, 1996

Gerald 0 . Harris
State Director-External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri

7114 7`~1
	

1187
	

P, OS. IE .

tttective : IMOM
APR 1 1998

1 . Exchange Listings (Includes EAS Points, EAS Rate Component, Rate
Schedule and Rate Group) (Cont'd)

EAS Rate Rate
Exchange Name EAS Points Component Sch ./Group

Bus . Res.

Fillmore Rosendale, Savannah $5 .60 $3 .05 A-1
Foley Old Monroe, Winfield 3 .45 3 .45 A-1
Fordland - A-2
Foristell Wright City 1 .00 1 .00 Metro
Forsyth Bradleyville, Cedar

Creek, Protem 1 .75 1 .75 A-3
Fremont - A-l

Gainesville Caulfield, Dora,
Theodosia, Wesola 3 .65 3 .65 A-2

Galena - A-2
-(D)

Golden City - - A-1
Gorin - - A-1
Gower Easton, Plattsburg 2 .00 1 .10 A-1
Greenfield Arcola 1 .80 1 .80 A-2
Grovespring Hartville, Manes 3 .65 3 .65 A-1

Hallsville Columbia 3 .70 2 .00 A-2
Hamilton Kidder, Kingston .80 .45 A-2
Hartville Grovespring, Manes 2 .95 2 .95 A-2
Hawk Point Troy 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
Helena Avenue City, Cosby,

Savannah 5 .75 3 .10 A-1
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Cancels Original Sheet 8
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LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE

Issued : March 1, 1996

	

Effective :
APR I 1496

Gerald D . Harris
State Director-External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri

1 . Exchange Listings
Schedule and Rate

(Includes EAS Points,
Group) (Cont'd)

EAS

EAS

Rate

Rate' ----

Component, '- Rate

- Rate
Exchange Name EAS Points Component Sch ./Group

Bus . Res .

Cosby Avenue City, Helena,
Savannah $9 .45 $5 .10 A-1

Crane - - - A-2
(D)

Cross Timbers - - - A-1
Cuba - - - A-3

0adevi11e - - - A-1
Dalton Keytesville 2 .35 2 .35 A-1
Dardenne/

Lake St . Louis - - - Metro
Defiance - - - Metro
Dora Gainesville 3 .65 3 .65 A-1

(D)

(D)
Easton Gower 1 .10 .60 A-I
Edgar Springs - - - A-1
Eldorado Springs Schell City, Walker 2 .45 2 .45 A-3
Elkland Marshfield 1 .90 1 .90 A-1
Ellsinore - - - A-1
Elmer La Plata 3 .20 3 .20 A-1
Eminence - - - A-1
Everton - - - A-1
Ewing - - - A-1
Exeter Cassville, Washburn 3 .65 3 .65 A-1
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1st Revised Sheet 7
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GENERAL AND LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE

Gerald D . Harris
State Director-External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri
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APR 1 1996
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(D)

1 . Exchange Listings (Includes EAS Points, EAS Rate
Cp~~i.~ .it4 ,

Rate
Schedule and Rate Group) (Cont'd}

EAS Rate Rate
E xc~h pQeN ame EAS Points Component Sch ./Group

Bus . Res .

Braymer A-1
Bronaugh-Moundville A-1
Brunswick (Triplett) A-1
Buffalo A-3
Bunker A-1

Cabool A-2
Caledonia _ _ _ A-I
Cameron Kidder $ .40 $ 2O A-3
Canton _ - _ A-2
Cape Fair A_2
Cassville Exeter, Jenkins,

Mano, Washburn 2 .90 2 .90 A-3
Caulfield Gainesville 3 .10 3 .10 A-2
Cedar Creek Forsyth .75 .75 A-1
Centerville - - - A-1
Centralia Clark, Sturgeon .55 .30 A-2
Chamois _ - _ A-I
Clarence _ - _ A-I
Clark Centralia, Sturgeon 3 .55 1 .90 A-1
Clarksdale _ - _ A-I

Collins A_I
Columbia Ashland, Hallsville,

Rocheport .30 .15 A-5
Concordia _ _ _ A-2
Conway A-2
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lst Revised Sheet 6
Cancels Original Sheet 6

GENERAL AND LOCAL EXCHANGE TARIFF

G . Local Exchange Listings

LOCAL EXCHARGE SERVICE

Issued : March 1, 1996

	

Effective :
APR 1

Gerald 0 . Harris
State Director-External Affairs

Wentzville, Missouri

1 . Exchange Listings (Includes EAS Points, [AS Rate Component, Rate
Schedule and Rate Group) ;vlta5tl~J i .

Exchange Name EAS Points
EAS Rate
Component

Rate
Sch ./Group

Bus . Res .

Al ton Thomasville $ 1 .80 $ 1 .80 A-2
Amazonia Savannah - 4 .50 2 .45 A-1
Annapolis - - - A-1
Arcola Greenfield 3 .20 3 .20 A-1
Ashland Columbia 2 .85 1 .55 A-2
Augusta - - - Metro
Aurora - - - A-3
Ava - - - A-3
Avenue City Cesby, Helena,

Savannah 4 .90 2 .65 A-1
Avilla - - - A-1

Belgrade A-1
Belle A-2
Bell eview A-1

Birch Tree - - - A-I
Bland - - - A-1
Blue Eye - - - A-2
Bolckow Rosendale, Savannah,

Whitesville 6 .95 3 .75 A-1
Boss - - - A-1
Bourbon - - - A-2
Bradleyville Forsyth .75 .75 A-1
Branson Branson West 1 .65 1 .65 A-4
Branson West Branson 2 .65 2 .65 A-2
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BY : John L . Roe
Vice President - Administration
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Cancels Original Page 2

RECEIVED

FILED
B 2'11994
'237

MISSOURI
Public service commission

P.u1 .'lr_ .
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ALCESS LIMITS AND EXCHANGES BY RATE GROUPS : (Cont'd) FE 9 0 .3 1994

B . EXCHANGES IN EACH RATE GROUP IN "A" ABOVE Public Service
MISSOURI

Commission
I

Appleton City Blackburn Blairstown Brazito (MT)
Calhoun Camden mint. Centertown Centerview
Chi)howee Clarksburg Coal Craig
Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene
Fai rfax Green Ridge Hardin Henrietta
Holt Hopkins Houstonia Ionia
King City Kingsville Leeton Lincoln
Malta Bend Missouri City Montrose New Bloomfield
Newburg Norborne Orrick Otterville
Pickering Russellville St . Thomas Smithton
Strasburg Sweet Springs Syracuse Taos
Tarkio Tipton Urich Waverly
Wellington (MT)

Buckner Butler California Cole Camp
Holden Kearney I akp I ntawana Inxingtnn (MT)
Lone Jack Mound City Odessa Platte City
Pleasant Hill Richland St . Robert Waynesville
Weston Windsor (MT)

ITI

CIinton Ferrelview Ft . Leonard Wood Harrisonville ( )
Lebanon MaryviIIe Oak Grove Rolla

PSI T

Salem Warrensburg Warsaw (MT)

lY
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MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

BIOGRAPHIES

MAURICE J. GALLAGHER, JR. has served as the chairman of our board of directors
since our inception . Mr. Gallagher was a founder of ValuJet Airlines, Inc . in 1993 and
served as a director of ValuJet from 1993 until November 1997and served as vice
chairman from 1994 to 1997 .

ROLLA P. HUFF was elected as our chief executive officer and president and as a
member of our board of directors as of November 1, 1999 . From March 1999 to
September 1999, Mr. Huff served as president and chiefoperating officer of Frontier
Corporation and served as executive vice president and chief financial officer of that
corporation from May 1998 to March 1999 . From July 1997 to May 1998, Mr. Huff was
president of AT&T Wireless for the Central U.S. region and Mr. Huff served as senior
vice president and chieffinancial officer of thatcompany from March 1995 to July 1997 .
From July 1994 to March 1995, Mr. Huffwas financial vice president ofmergers and
acquisitions for AT&T.

TIMOTHY P. FLYNN has served as a member of our board of directors since 1996 . Mr.
Flynn served as a member of the board of directors of ValuJet Airlines since he
participated in its founding in 1993 until November 1997 . Mr . Flynn and Mr. Gallagher
are affiliated in a number of other transactions .

JACK L. HANCOCK has served as a member of our board of directors since1996 . Mr.
Hancock was vice president of systems technology and executive vice president, product
and technology for 47 PacBell from 1988 to 1993 . He has served as a member ofthe
boards of directors of Union Bank of California and Wittaker Corporation since 1994 .

DAVID KRONFELD was elected to serve as a member of our board of directors in
February 1998 . Mr. Kronfeld is the founder ofJK&B Management, L .L.C., a venture
capital firm, and has managed its affairs since 1995 . Since 1989, Mr. Kronfeld has also
been a partner at Boston Capital Ventures, a venture capital firm where he specialized in
the telecommunications and software industries .

MARKJ. MASIELLO was elected to serve as a member of our board of directors in
November 1999 . Mr. Masiello is a principal of Providence Equity Partners, Inc., which
provides investment management services to Providence Equity Partners III L.P . ("PEP")
and has since its founding in 1998 served as a member of Providence Equity Partners III
LLC, the general partner of PEP. Mr. Masiello has been with Providence since 1989 and
he currently serves as a director of VIA NET.WORKS, Inc., Netcom Internet Limited and
Netcom Canada Inc.

Page 1 of3
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THOMAS NEUSTAETTER was elected to serve as a member of our board ofdirectors
in February 1998 . Since March 1999, Mr. Neustaetter has been an executive member of
JK&B Capital . From January 1996 to December 1999, Mr. Neustaetter was a partner of
The Chatterjee Group, an investment firm which is an affiliate of Soros Fund
Management. Before joining The Chatterjee Group, he was the president and founder of
Bancroft Capital, a general consulting firm, from December 1994 to December 1996 . Mr.
Neustaetter also serves as a director of 21 st Century Telecom Group, Inc., Gloss.com,
Update Marketing, Selectica, Inc . and Vector Holdings .

PAUL J. SALEM was elected to serve as a member of our board of directors in May
1999 . Since 1997, Mr. Salem served as a managing director of Providence Equity
Partners, Inc., which provides investment management services to PEP and has since its
founding in 1998 served as a member ofProvidence Equity Partners III LLC, the general
partner of PEP. Mr. Salem also served as a vice president ofProvidence Ventures Inc .
from 1992 to 1996 . Mr. Salem has served as a director of MetroNet Communications
Corp . since July 1996 and as a director of Verio, Inc . since 1996 .

JAMES BALL joined our company as president -- Midwest region in November1999 .
From September 1998 until November 1999, Mr. Ball served as regional vice president
for a 12-city region with Chicago-based Level 3 Communications . Before September
1998, Mr. Ball held senior management positions at Epoch Internet from November 1997
to August 1998 and MFS Telecom from August 1993 to October 1997 .

JOHN BOERSMA has served as our vice president -- operations since May 1997and
was designated senior vice president -- operations in May 1999 . He served as vice
president of carrier relations for ICG Telecom Group, Inc . from 1996 to 1997 . In that
capacity, he was responsible for ICG Telecom's relationship with local exchange carriers
and implementation, purchase agreements and service quality . Mr. Boersma served as
vice president, northern California operations of ICG Telecom from April 1994 to
September 1996 .

DAVID S. CLARK has since December 1999 served as our senior vice president --
investor relations . Mr . Clark served as our vice president -- marketing from May 1997
until May 1999 when he was designated senior vice president -- sales and marketing . Mr.
Clark has been in the telecommunications industry for 11 years, with responsibilities
including engineering, purchasing, product development, client acquisition and
maintenance, marketing and advertising . From 1989 to 1997, Mr. Clark was employed by
North American Telecom, his last position being vice president of communications
services .

S . GREGORY CLEVENGER will join our company as senior vice president --
corporate development in January 2000 . From March 1997 to December 1999, Mr.
Clevenger was vice president of investment banking at Goldman, Sachs & Co. in the
communications, media and entertainment group in Singapore and NewYork. From
September 1992 to March 1997, Mr. Clevenger was an associate and vice president in the
investment banking division of Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated in New York, Hong
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Kong and Singapore in a variety of groups including the global telecommunications
group and the global project finance and leasing group . From May 1990 to September
1992, Mr. Clevenger was an associate and vice president at Argent Group Ltd . in New
York.

MICHAEL R. DALEY joined our company as executive vice president and chief
financial officer in November 1999 . From November 1998 to November 1999, Mr. Daley
served as executive vice president and chief financial officer of Concentrix Corporation .
From 1984 through ACC Corp.'s merger with Teleport Communications Group, Inc . in
1998, Mr. Daley served in various capacities at ACC Corp., including as executive vice
president and chief financial officer from March 1994 to October 1998 with
responsibilities including operations support, investor relations, human resources, legal,
mergers and acquisitions and business development .

KENT F. HEYMAN has served as our vice president and general counsel since June
1996 and was designated senior vice president in December 1999 . Mr . Heyman has 18
years of legal experience, most recently as chairman of the litigation department and
senior trial counsel of the Dowling, Magarian, Aaron & Heyman law firm. Mr. Heyman
has served as a California Superior Court Judge pro tempore presiding over trial,
settlement conference and other proceedings from 1990 to1996 . GEORGE LONGYEAR
has served as our president -- southwestern region since October 1999 . From April 1998
until October, 1999, Mr. Longyear served as branch director in our Atlanta office . Mr.
Longyear has over nine years telephone industry experience, most recently with MCI
Communications from 1991 to 1997where he held various senior sales and management
positions in their local service group and state government and university segment .

MARK D. MAGARIAN will join our company as senior vice president -- human
resources in January 2000 . Mr. Magarian practiced law and specialized in labor and
employment law from 1993 until December 1999 .

JAMES MITCHELL has served as our president -- eastern region since February 1998 .
Mr . Mitchell has over nine years oftelephone industry experience, serving from 1990 to
1998 in various sales and marketing management roles with MCI, his last position being
regional sales and marketing manager for the southeast region .

MARK W. PETERSON has served as our president -- western region since March1997 .
From 1993 to 1996, Mr. Peterson was a marketing and communications consultant and a
law student . He previously served as head ofcorporate affairs for WestAir Holding, Inc .
from 1988 to 1992 .

LINDA M. SUNBURY has served as our vice president and principal accounting officer
since June 1996 and served as our chief financial officer from January1998 to November
1999 . Ms. Sunbury was designated senior vice president in May1999 and since December
1999 has served as senior vice president -- finance . Ms . Sunbury has over 15 years
accounting and administrative experience, having held similar positions in the airline
industry . Most recently, Ms. Sunbury was Vice-President of administration for Business
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Express, Inc . d.b.a. the Delta Connection from 1994 to 1996 . While Ms. Sunbury was at
Business Express, creditors of Business Express filed an involuntary petition for
bankruptcy in January 1996.Business Express subsequently reorganized and emerged
from bankruptcy in April1997 . Before that, Ms. Sunbury served as controller for WestAir
Holding, Inc . from 1988 to 1994 .
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MG^ COMMUNICATIONS INC(Form*,. . .ed : 15 November Ifittp ://realtimefilings .*q.com/ . . .I I\l5\14\0000950123-99-010236 .html

1of16

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C . 20549

FORM 10-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 1999

Commissionfile number 0-24059

MGC Communications, Inc .
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Nevada

	

88-0360042
(State of incorporation)

	

(IRS Employer Identification Number)

3301 North Buffalo Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

(Address of principal executive offices)

(702) 310-1000
(Registrant's telephone number)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)
ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that
the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days :

YES3 X NO

The number of shares outstanding of the issuer's common stock, as ofNovember 15, 1999 :

Common stock ($ .001 par value) . . . . 22,906,952 shares outstanding

MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

INDEX

12/06/1999 6:16 PM



MGC COMMUNICATIONS INC(FormleQ_.ed : 15 November I http ://realtimefilin;s.oq.com/. . . I I'd5',1J\0000950123-99-010236.html

PART 1 -- FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1 . _,. . .5c_-_a__ . . 7ina-cial statements

SIGNATURES

3 ta_=m_nts c_' Opera--x. .̂S -- - .___ and Nice xen-'-s
_ndea - Sectember 30, -999 and _993

Consolidated Balance Sheets -- September 30, 1999 (Unaudited)
and December 31, 1998

Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Preferred Stock and Stockholders'
Equity for the period from December 31, 1997 to September 30, 1999
(Unaudited)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -- Nine months ended
September 30, 1999 and 1998 (Unaudited)

Condensed Notes to Unaudited Interim Consolidated
Financial Statements

Item 2 . Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Item 3 . Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

PART II -- OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1 . Legal Proceedings

Item 2 . Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

Item 6 . Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-R

Item 1 . Consolidated Financial Statements

3

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

(UNAUDITED)

P

2 of 16
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MGC COMMUNICATIONS INC(Fonn:~. . . .ed : 15 November I http://realtimefilings.neq .com/ . . . I P15.14'0000950123-99-010236 .html

Operat_^ ~ ce . .̂ses :
Cost of operating revenues
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization

Loss from operations
Other income (expense) :

Gain on sale of investments available-
for-sale

Interest income
Interest expense(net of amounts capitalized)

Net loss
Accrued preferred stock dividend

Net loss applicable to common stockholders

Basic and diluted loss per share of
common stock

Basic and diluted weighted average
shares outstanding

See accompanying condensed notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements .
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MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

September . 30, D
1999

ASSETS

	

(UNAUDITED)
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THREE MONTHS
September

ENDED
30,

1999
------------

199
-------

12,460
10,544
4,740

------------
27,744 1

------------
(12,708)

-------

--
2,348
(4,635)

------------
(14,995)
(1,197)

------------
$ (16,192) $

$ ( .76) $

21,282,609 17,15

Current assets :
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 93,224
Investments available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50,177
Restricted investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,375
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful

accounts of $478 and $257 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,145
Prepaid expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 599

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 190,520
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 151,159
Investments available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,560
Restricted investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . --
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Deferred __nanclng costs, net of amortization. of $1,686
a. . . . ~'_, 065

	

4,093
Other a=s- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
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I RED___-_3iE
=y

. .=-=BRED
STOCK AND STOCKHC__D_RS' EQUITY

Current liabilities :
Current maturities of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

$

	

283
Accounts payable :

Trade . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

8,912
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

15,276
Accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

10,400
Accrued other expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

8,492

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

43,363
Senior Secured Notes, net of unamortized discount of $2,875
and $3,307 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

157,125
Other long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

269

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

200,757

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable preferred stock :
10% Series H convertible preferred stock, 5,277,779 shares
authorized and outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

46,663

Stockholders' equity :
Preferred stock, 44,722,221 shares authorized and unissued

	

--
Common stock, $0 .001 par value, 60,000,000 shares

authorized, 22,810,060 and 17,190,428 shares issued,
and 22,800,920 and 17,190,428 outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

23
Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

227,955
Accumulated deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

(91,062)
Less : Treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

(76)

136,840
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)income . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

(360)
Notes receivable from stockholders for issuance of common

stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

(2,086 ;

Total stockholders' equi`_y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

'134,394

Total liabilities, redeemable preferred stock a~d
stockholders' equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

	

$ 3:1,814

See accompanying condensed notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements .
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MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCKAND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

4 of 16

	

12/06/1999 6 :16 PM



MGC COMMUNICATIONS INC(Fotm :ep,. ..ed: 15 November Ihttp:l'realtimefiling.s .nW.com/ . . .I I\I5',I4 0000950123-99-010236 .html

5of16

--r--MABLE
__-?=-RED STOCK

TREASURY STOCK

	

S
---------------------
SHARES AMOUNT
------- --------

R
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BALANCE . . . _ECEVHEF 3i, 1 99 7 . . . . . 9,5 , 0 $16,665 8
Common stock issued for cash . . . . . -- --
Common stock issued for notes

receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -- --
Warrants and options exercised

for common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -- --
8% Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock issued for cash . . . . . . . . . . 1,422,857 4,980

Accrued preferred stock dividend --
Common stock issued for cash (IPO) -- -- 4
Conversion of preferred stock to

common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,571,427) (21,645) 3
Unrealized gain on investments

available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . --
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -- --

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1998 . . . . . -- $ -- 17
Unrealized loss on investments

available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . -- --
Common stock issLad . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -- -- 5
Warrants and options exercised

for common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -- --
Payment on stockholder's note- . . . . -- --
Repurchase of common stock . . . . . . . --
10% Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock issued for cash . . . . . . . . . . 5,277,779 46,663

Accrued preferred stock dividend
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . -- --

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 . . . . 5,277,779 $46,663 22
(UNAUDITED) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . --------- ------- --

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1997 . . . . .

ACCUMULATED
DERi--_T

-----------
$(12,463)

Common stock issued for cash . . . . . --
Common stock issued for notes

receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . --
Warrants and options exercised

for common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . --
88 Series A Convertible Preferred

Stock issued for cash . . . . . . . . . . --
Accrued preferred stock dividend
Common stock issued for cash (IPO) --
Conversion of preferred stock to

common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 790
Unrealized gain on investments

available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (32,065)

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1998 . . . . . $(44,392)
Unrealized loss on investments
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available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . .
Common stock issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Warrants --nd cctions exercised

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Stock _ss ::ed ___ cash . . . . . . . . . .
Accrued _creferred stock dividend .
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 . . . .
(UNAUDITED) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

See accompanying condensed notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements.

MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATFATUNTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN THOUSANDS)

Cash flows from financing activities :

6

(UNAUDITED)

(1, 526)
(44, 744)

Costs associated with issuance of Senior Secured

$(91,062) 9,140

	

$(76)

12/06/1999 6 :16 PM

NIN
S

__--
999

Cash flows from, operating activities :
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $(44,7
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used

in operating activities :
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,4
Gain on sale of investments available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2
Amortization of debt discount . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Amortization of .deferred financing costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
Changes in assets and liabilities :

Increase in accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9, 7

Increase(decrease) in prepaid expenses and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3
Increase in other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4
Increase in accounts payable - trade . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3, 5
Increase in accrued interest and other expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,2

Net cash used in operating a~tiv_ties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (29,2

Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of property and equipment, net of
payables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (46,8

Decrease in accounts payable - property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,3
Purchase of investments held-to-maturity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Purchase of investments available-for-sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (58, -7
Sale of investments available-for-.sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45,1
Sale of restricted investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,0

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (54,'7
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No=es _ . . .. warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Pre=eeds=- � . . . issuance of Convertible Pre_`e-red

S=c='-:,

	

. .__
Pa',~e .".=5

	

.. . .

	

_ �-.2°a=
_ ., ::e2 ::s _-cm

Cash and

Cash and

Net

caNet
incash

ecashe

Supplemental
schIncreasein

prinaccounts

Property

acquiStockissued /

Increase in a

Other disclosur
Cash paid for interest net of amounts capitalized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

See accompanying condensed notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements .
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MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
Condensed Notes to Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements ofMGC Communications.
(the "Company" or "MGC"), aNevada corporation, include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, MGC Lease Corporation and MGC LJ.Net, Inc . All significant
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated .

Inc.

These consolidated financial statements reflect all normal recurring adjustments, which management
believes are necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for
the Company for the respective periods presented . Certain information and footnote disclosures
normally included in the annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission for Form 10-Q . These unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto included in the Company's annual report on Form I O-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

The consolidated balancesheet at December 31, 1998 was derived from the audited consolidated
financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required under generally accepted accounting
principles .
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--f Issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,'0
= .':e= Iona term c2 .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2
_ .e- a-__ . .f--J__ °. .:-0=°_ ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
___ ...~ . .__ 5=7C .Y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 118,9
issuance of _c== szocK ,__ .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

sh provided 61 financing act''%ities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 165,3

crease (decrease) in cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81,3
quivalents at beginning of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,8

uivalents at the end of period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 93,2

edule of non-cash investing and financing activities :
operty and equipment purchases included
notes payable -- property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . $

red under capital lease . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 2

repurchased from notes receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S

crued preferred stock dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1, 9

s :
$ 7, 5
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(2) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands) :

(3) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

(4) RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

8

(5) REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into purchase agreements with its vendors of
telecommunications equipment . As of September .' 0, 1999 and December 31, 1998, the Company had a
total for all vendors of approximately 553 .4 million and $15 .4 million . respectively, of remaining
purchase commitments for purchases of switching and other telecommunications equipment .

The Company recognizes operating revenues from communications services in the period the related
services are provided . Due to current disputes and pending arbitration and litigation, the Company has
recognized switched access revenues based on management's best estimate of the probable collections
from such revenue. For the nine month period ended September 30, 1999 and for the year ended
December 31, 1998, the Company has recognized in operating revenues switched access revenues of
approximately $12,079,000 and $7,378,000, respectively . Included in accounts receivable in the
accompanying balance sheets as of September 30, 1999 and December 31, 1998 are net receivables from
carrier access billings of approximately $12,262,000 and $3,590,000, respectively .

In May 1999, the Company completed a private placement offering in which 5,277,779 shares of Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock were issued at $9.00 per share for proceeds to the Company of $46.7
million, net of expenses .

Dividends accrue at the rate of 10% per annum, are cumulative and are payable in preference to any
dividends that may be paid with respect to the Company's common stock . Beginning November 22,
1999, the Company may elect to terminate the accrual of dividends if the Company's stock price exceeds

8 of 16
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SEPTEMBER .;),
1999

-----------
(UNAUDITED)

DECEMBER 31,
1998

------------

Building and property . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,298 $ 2,653
Switching equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113,132 57,045
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 860 740
Computer hardware and software . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,629 2,218
Office equipment and vehic_es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,532

-------
901

-------
124,451 63,557

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18,834)

-------
(6,555)

-------
105,617 57,002

Switching equipment under construction . . . . . . . . . . 45,542 59,378

Net property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . .
-------

$151,159
-------

$116,380
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$27.00 per share (subject to certain adjustments) for 20 consecutive trading days (the "Market
Threshold") prior to May 4, 2002 .

The holders of the Series B Preferred Stock have the riglu to nominate one or more directors depending
on the size of the Company's Board of Directors and the nercentaue of the Company's stock represented
by the outstanding Series B Preferred Stock . The holders of the Series B Preferred Stock also have the
right to have their Board representative serve on each committee of the Company's Board. The holders
of the Series B Preferred will vote along with the common stock on an as-converted basis .

The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into common stock at any time at the option of the holder .
Initially, each share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into one share of common stock . The
conversion price is subject to adjustment as a result of stock splits, stock dividends and certain other
issuances of additional stock .

After the earlier of May 24, 2000 or the date on which the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock
exercise their demand registration rights, the Company has the right to require the conversion of the
Series B Preferred Stock ifthe Company's stock price exceeds the Market Threshold referenced above .
If the Company requires conversion before May 4, 2002, no accrued dividends will be paid .

In July 1999, the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock and received net proceeds, after
expenses, of approximately $118 .1 million . In this offering, existing stockholders sold an additional
587,695 shares of common stock for which the Company did not receive any proceeds .

In September 1999, the Company reacquired 9,140 shares of its common stock at an aggregate purchase
price of $76,136 in partial cancellation of a note receivable from stockholder for issuance of common
stock and is classified as treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated financial statements .

(6) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In October 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with Providence Equity Partners III L .P . and
affiliate ("Providence ")and JK&B Capital III L.P . ("JK&B III") under which Providence and JK&B III
(the "Purchasers") are to purchase 1,250,000 shares of newly issued Series C Convertible Preferred
Stock at $28 .00 per share for a total consideration of $35 .0 million . The terms of the new class of Series
C Preferred Stock will be similar to those of the Series B Preferred Stock except for pricing and related
features .

9

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

We began providing competitive local dialtone services to small business and residential customers in
December 1996, and began offering long distance services by February 1998 . Currently, we have
switches fully operational in Las Vegas, Atlanta, Chicago, southern Florida, and in selected areas of
southern California, including Los Angeles and San Diego .

Our revenues are generated from sales of communications services consisting primarily of local phone
service, long distance services, switched access billings and non-recurring charges, principally
installation charges .

Our principal operating expenses consist of cost of operating revenues, selling, general and
administrative expenses and depreciation and amortization expense . Cost of operating revenues consists
primarily of access charges, line installation expenses, transport expenses, compensation expenses of
technical personnel, long distance expenses and collocation lease expenses . Selling, general and
administrative expenses consist primarily ofcompensation expenses, advertising, provision for bad

12/06/1999 6:16 PM
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debts, professional fees and office rentals . Depreciation and amortization expense includes depreciation
of switching and collocation equipment as well as general property and equipment .

During 1998 . we expanded significantly with the installation of four additional switches and the
build-out of 192 additional collocation sites . During the first nine months of 1999, we hace continued
this expansion with the build-out of 81 additional collocation sites . As expected . both cost of operating
revenues and selling, general and administrative expenses increased as many of the fixed costs of
providing service in new markets are incurred before significant revenue can be generated from those
markets . In addition, we incurred significant marketing costs to build our initial base of customers in our
new markets .

Building and expanding our business has required and will continue to require us to incur significant
capital expenditures primarily consisting of the costs of purchasing switches, associated equipment and
land for switching sites and constructing buildings or improving leased buildings to house our switching
and collocation facilities . As part of our "smart build" network strategy, we purchased and installed host
switches in each of our markets while leasing the means of transporting voice and data traffic from these
switches to our customers' telephones or other equipment . We believe this facilities-based strategy,
while initially increasing our level of capital expenditures and operating losses, will enhance long-term
financial performance in comparison to a resale strategy .

We have experienced operating losses and generated negative cash flow from operations since inception
and expect to continue to generate negative cash flow from operations for the foreseeable future while
we continue to expand our network and develop our product offerings and customer base . There can be
no assurance our revenue or customer base will grow or that we will be able to achieve or sustain
positive cash flow from operations .

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

QUARTER ENDED - SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 VS. SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Total operating revenues increased to $15.0 million for the quarter ended September JO, 1999 as
compared to $4.9 million for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 . The 206% increase is a result of the
increase in the number of lines . We had 117,210 lines in service at the end of the third quarter 1999 as
compared to 35,246 lines in service at September 30, 1998, a 233% increase .

Cost of operating revenues for the quarter ended September 30, 1999 was $12.5 million as compared to
$4.8 million for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 . The 160% increase is due to the increased
number of lines in service and installation and operational expenses associated with the expansion ofour
network .

10

For the quarter ended September 30, 1999, selling, general and administrative expenses totaled $10.5
million ; a 94% increase over the $5 .4 million for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 . The increase is
a result of increased costs attributable to marketing and delivering our service and supporting our
continued network expansion .

For the quarter ended September 30, 1999, depreciation and amortization was $4.7 million as compared
to $1 .2 million for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 . This increase is a result of placing additional
assets in service in accordance with the planned build-out of our network.

Gross interest expense for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, totaled $5.6 million compared to $5 .5
million for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 . Interest capitalized for the quarter ended September
30, 1999 increased to $1 .0 million as compared to $0.3 million for the quarter ended September 30,
1998 . The increase in interest capitalized is due to the increase in switching equipment under
construction . Gross interest expense is primarily attributable to the 13% Senior Secured Notes due 2004
("Senior Secured Notes") we issued in September 1997 .

12/06/1999 6 :16 PM
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Interest income was S2.4 million during the quarter ended September 30, 1999 compared to S2 .5 million
for the quarter ended September 30. 1998 . The 4% decrease is a result of lower cash balances as cash
and investments have been used to purchase switching equipment . pad interest on the Senior Secured
Notes . anJ t'und operatin_ losses .

We incurred net losses of S15 .0 million during third quarter 1999 and $9.1 million during the third
quarter 1998 .

NINE MONTH PERIOD ENDED - SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 VS. SEPTEMBER 30, 1998

Total operating revenues increased to $34.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1999 as
compared to $11 .8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1998 . The 196% increase is a result
of the increase in the number of lines in service and increased long distance service and switched access
revenues .

Cost ofoperating revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 1999 was $31 .4 million as
compared to $10.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1998 . The 196% increase is due to
the increased number of lines in service and installation and operational expenses associated with the
expansion of our network .

For the nine months ended September 30, 1999, selling, general and administrative expenses totaled
$27.5 million ; a 143% increase over the $11 .3 million for the nine months ended September 36, 1998 .
The increase is a result of increased costs attributable to marketing and delivering our service and
supporting our continued network expansion .

For the nine months ended September 30, 1999, depreciation and amortization was $12.4 million as
compared to $3 .1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1998 . This increase is a result of
placing additional assets in service in accordance with the planned build-out of our network .

Gross interest expense during each nine-month period ended September 30, 1999 and 1998 totaled $16.7
million. Interest capitalized for the nine months ended September 30, 1999 increased to $2 .9 million as
compared to $0 .6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1998 . The increase in interest
capitalized is due to the increase in switching equipment under construction . Gross interest expense is
primarily attributable to the Senior Secured Notes issued in September 1997 .

Interest income was $5 .2 million during the nine months ended September 30, 1999 compared to $7.0
million for the nine months ended September 30, 1998 . The 26% decrease is a result of the decrease in
cash and investments since September 30, 1998 . Cash and investments have been used to purchase
switching equipment, pay interest on the Senior Secured Notes, and fund operating losses .

We incurred net losses of $44 .7 million and $22.3 million for the nine-month periods ended September
30, 1999 and 1998, respectively .

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our operations require substantial capital investment for the purchase of communications equipment and
the development and installation of our network . Capital expenditures for the quarter ended September
30, 1999 were $22.9 million . We expect we will continue to require substantial amounts of capital to
fund the purchase of the equipment necessary to continue expanding our network footprint in our
existing markets and to develop new products and services . In addition, we expect to enter new markets
during 2000 . We expect capital expenditures of approximately $400.0 million over the next five years,
including approximately $25 million of capital expenditures expected during the last three months of
1999 . We expect to fund these capital expenditures from cash on hand and public or private debt or
equity financing . In addition, we are currently evaluating financing proposals from vendors and
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equipment lease financing companies . We cannot assure you that we will be successful in raising
sufficient debt or equity capital on acceptable terms .

In Mav 1999, we issued 5 .277.779 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock at 59 .00 per share for
net proceeds of S-16 .? million .

In July 1999, we issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock and received net proceeds, after expenses, of
approximately $118.1 million . In this offering, existing stockholders sold an additional 587,695 shares
of common stock for which we did not receive any proceeds .

In October 1999, we entered into an agreement with Providence and JK&B III under which Providence
and JK&B III agreed to purchase 1,250,000 shares of newly issued Series C Convertible Preferred Stock
at $28 .00 per share for a total consideration of $35 .0 million .

The substantial capital investment required to initiate services and fund our initial operations has
exceeded our operating cash flow . This negative cash flow from operations results from the need to
establish our network in anticipation of connecting revenue-generating customers . We expect to continue
recording negative cash flow from operations for a period of time because we are continuing network
expansion activities . We cannot assure you we will attain break-even cash flow from operations in
subsequent periods . Until sufficient cash flow from operations is generated, we will need to use our
current and future capital resources to meet our cash flow requirements and may be required to issue
additional debt and/or equity securities . We expect our available cash should be adequate to fund our
operations and planned capital expenditures through the end of the first quarter 2001 . The indenture
governing the Senior Secured Notes and the terms of our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock impose
restrictions upon our ability to incur additional debt or issue preferred stock .

IMPACT OF YEAR 2000

The Year 2000 issue, commonly referred to as Y2K, is a result of the way some computer systems store
dates . In many cases, when a date is stored by a computer, a two digit field has been used to store the
year (i.e ., 01/01/98 = January 1, 1998) . The system assumes that the first two digits in the year field are
"19." With the end of the century approaching, those same systems should reflect 01/01/00 as being
"January 1, 2000." However, a non-compliant system will read 01/01/00 as January 1, 1900 .

We have been focused on Year 2000 issues since our inception in 1996 . In recognition of the priority
associated with the Year 2000 issue, we established a Year 2000 Project Team at the corporate level to
lead the Year 2000 effort . Since we are young, much of the hardware and software currently in place was
purchased with Y2K readiness in mind . However, in most cases, we have relied on representations of
our vendors as to the Y2K compliance ofthe hardware and software we have purchased. We cannot
assure you the vendor representations we relied upon are accurate or complete or that we will have
recourse against any vendors whose representations prove misleading .

Our Y2K plans include a number of phases designed to evaluate the Y2K readiness of our network and
computer systems. We have completed the inventory and assessment of all network and information
systems and have begun the renovation and testing phases . Renovation of mission critical components of
our network and operation support system for Year 2000 compliance was completed in June 1999 . We
will continue integration testing throughout the remainder of 1999 .

12

Subject to additional compliance testing, we believe our essential processes, systems and business
" functions will be ready for the 1999 to 2000 transition .

Our significant vendors, including the major communications equipment suppliers, have assured us their
applications are Year 2000 compliant . Our business also relies on other third parties . The ability of third
parties upon whom we rely to adequately address their Year 2000 issues is outside our control . However,
we are coordinating efforts with these parties to minimize the extent to which our business will be
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vulnerable to their failure to remediate their own Year 2000 issues . We cannot assure you the systems of
the third parties will be modified on a timely basis. Our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected by the failure of the systems and applications of third
parties to properly operate after 1999 .

We are continuously evaluating our contingency plans should mission critical systems fail as a result of
Y2K issues .

In a recent SEC release regarding Year 2000 disclosure, the SEC stated that public companies must
disclose the most reasonably likely worst case Year 2000 scenario . Although it is not possible to assess
the likelihood of any of the following events, each must be included in a consideration of worst case
scenarios : widespread failure of electrical, gas and similar suppliers serving us ; widespread disruption of
the services provided by common communications carriers ; similar disruption to the means and modes
of transportation for our employees, contractors, suppliers and customers ; significant disruption to our
ability to gain access to, and remain working in, office buildings and other facilities ; the failure of
substantial numbers of our critical computer hardware and software systems, including both internal
business systems and systems controlling operational facilities such as electrical generation,
transmission and distribution systems; and the failure of outside entities' systems, including systems
related to banking and finance .

If we cannot operate effectively after December 31, 1999, we could, among other things, face substantial
claims by customers or loss of revenue due to service interruptions, inability to fulfill contractual
obligations or to bill customers accurately and on a timely basis, as well as increased expenses
associated with litigation, stabilization of operations followi-g critical system failures and the execution
ofcontingency plans . We could also experience an inability by customers and others to pay, on a timely
basis or at all, obligations owed to us. Under these circumstances, the adverse effects, although not
quantifiable at this time, could be material .

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Report that state our intentions, hopes, beliefs, expectations or
predictions of the future are forward-looking statements . We wish to caution you these forward-looking
statements such as our plans to expand our existing network through collocation and into new markets,
statements regarding development, introduction and acceptance of our products or business, statements
regarding our ability to achieve or exceed our goals or reach profitability in the future, statements
regarding the adequacy or availability of financing, statements regarding the outcome of regulatory
proceedings or litigation or the effect of government regulations, statements regarding our ability or the
ability of others to become Y2K compliant or similar statements contained in this Report regarding
matters that are not historical facts, are only estimates or predictions . Actual results may differ
materially as a result of risks facing us or actual results differing from assumptions underlying such
statements . Such risks and assumptions include, but are not limited to, our ability to successfully market
our existing and proposed services to current and new customers in existing and planned markets,
successfully develop commercially viable data and Internet offerings, access markets, install switches
and obtain suitable locations for our switches, negotiate and renew suitable interconnection agreements
with the ILECs, obtain an acceptable level of cooperation from the ILECs, all in a timely manner, at
reasonable cost and on satisfactory terms and conditions, as well as regulatory, competitive, legislative
and judicial developments that could materially affect our future results . All forward-looking statements
made in this Report are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements .

13

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

All of our long-term debt bears fixed interest rates, however, the fair market value of this debt is
sensitive to changes in prevailing interest rates . We run the risk that market rates will decline and the fair
market value of required payments will exceed those based on the current market rate . We do not use
interest rate derivative instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate changes .
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ITEM 1 . LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are a party to numerous state and federal administrative proceedings . In these proceedings, we are
seeking to define and/or enforce ILEC performance requirements related to :

- the cost and provisioning of unbundled network elements ;

- the establishment of customer care and provisioning ;

- the allocation ofsubsidies ; and

- collocation costs and procedures .

14

PART 11 . OTHER INFORMATION

The outcome of these proceedings will establish the rates and procedures by which we obtain and
provide unbundled network elements and could haves a material effect on our operating costs .

We are also involved in legal proceedings in which we are seeking to enforce our tariffed rates for
originating and terminating switched access . As of September 30, 1999, we had outstanding receivables
of approximately $12 .2 million attributable to access charges from long distance carriers . Some of these
long distance carriers have refused to pay the full amount of the access charges billed to them . We
initiated proceedings against AT&T at the FCC under an FCC procedure for expedited settlement of
disputes between common carriers . On July 16, 1999, the FCC released a decision ordering AT&T to
pay us the full amount we billed to them for originating switched access charges from August 1998
through March 1999 at our tariffed rate, plus interest . This decision is subject to appeal by AT&T. We
are currently preparing to file a similar complaint against Sprint . The final outcomes of the disputes with
AT&T and Sprint are uncertain . If we are unable to collect our tariffed access charges from these long
distance carriers, it could have a material impact on our financial condition .

On July 29, 1999, we settled our antitrust lawsuit against Sprint Corporation . Under the terms of the
settlement, we and other CLECs will receive a residential market entry incentive of up to $3 .65 per
residential line in Nevada per month for the term of the agreement, which expires June 30, 2002 .

From time to time, we engage in other litigation and governmental proceedings in the ordinary course of
business . We do not believe that any pending litigation or governmental proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition .

ITEM 2. CHANGES IN SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) Not applicable

(b) Not applicable

(c) During third quarter 1999, we issued 145,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise of
warrants acquired in a private placement, with respect to which we received nominal proceeds . All of the
securities were acquired by the recipients thereof for investment and with no view toward the sale or
redistribution thereof. In each instance, the offers and sales were made without any public solicitation ;
the stock certificates bear restrictive legends ; and appropriate stop transfer instruction have been or will
be given to the transfer agent . No underwriter was involved in this transaction and no commissions were
paid with respect to the sale of such securities . These issuances of securities were made in reliance on
the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 (as a transaction
by an issuer not involving a public offering) and by Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act of 1933 .
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(d) Our Registration Statement No . 333-49085 was declared effective on May 1 1, 1998, which was the
offering date of our common stock thereunder . During the period from May 11 . 1998 until

September 30, 1999 we paid $4,790,000 in underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering
expenses of $672,000 for total offering expenses of $5,42,000, resulting in net offering proceeds to us
of $62,963,000 . Of such amounts, expenses of $16,000 were paid for charter services to a related party
of which two current board members are major shareholders . No other amounts were paid for offering
expenses directly or indirectly to officers, Directors, 10% or greater stockholders or other affiliates of
ours .

During the period from May 11, 1998 until September 30, 1999, the net offering proceeds were invested
in government securities and money market funds . None of such amounts were paid directly or
indirectly to officers, Directors, 10% or greater stockholders or other affiliates of ours .

ITEM 3. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report . The exhibit numbers refer to Item 601 of
Regulation S-K.

27 Financial Data Schedule

(b) The following Current Reports on Form 8-K have been tiled by the Company :

Form 8-K dated July 19, 1999 to report the second quarter 1999 earnings .

Form 8-K dated October 14, 1999 to report the third quarter 1999 earnings and the hiring of a new chief
executive officer and an agreement to issue $35 million of preferred stock at $28 .00 per share .

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf of the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized .

Date :

Date :
---------- ---------------------
1.=nda `~'. . Suabury
Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
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ARTICLE 5

MULTIPLIER : 1 .000

PERIOD TYPE 9 .\,1OS
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 1999
PERIOD START JAN 01 1999
PERIOD END SEP 30 1999
CASH 93,224
SECURITIES 116,112
RECEIVABLES 16,623
ALLOWANCES 478
INVENTORY 36
CURRENT ASSETS 190,520
PP&E 169,993
DEPRECIATION 18,834
TOTAL ASSETS 381,814
CURRENT LIABILITIES 43,363
BONDS 157,125
PREFERRED MANDATORY 46,663
PREFERRED 0
COMMON 23
OTHER SE 134,447
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 381,814
SALES 34,922
TOTAL REVENUES 34,922
CGS 31,449
TOTAL COSTS 71,324
OTHER EXPENSES 0
LOSS PROVISION 0
INTEREST EXPENSE 13,823
INCOME PRETAX (44,744)
INCOME TAX 0
INCOME CONTINUING (44,744)
DISCONTINUED 0
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME (44,744)
EPS BASIC (2 .50)
EPS DILUTED (2.50)
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ITEM 1 . BUSINESS

THE COMPANY

PART I
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C2") _ffering switched local and lcnc istance voice and data
services . The Company targets small business and residential users, the largest
segment of the national communications market, based on access lines in
service . The company began operations in December 1996 in Las Vegas, Nevada as
a switched local exchange service provider . Through internally generated growth
the Company subsequently expanded its network to offer service in Atlanta,
Chicago, southern Florida and selected suburban areas of southern California
including the Los Angeles area and San Diego . As of February 28, 1999, the
Company's network footprint provided access to over 11 million addressable
lines . As of December 31, 1998, MGC had 61,2C5 end user access lines sold, of
which 47,744 lines were in service . During 1999, the Company currently plans to
continue expanding its network by adding over 100 central office collocation
sites to the 207 sites existing at year end 1998 .

MGC's network strategy consists of purchasing and deploying switching
equipment, collocating interconnection equipment in incumbent local exchange
carriers ("ILECS "') central offices and leasing fiber optic transmission
capacity from ILECS and other providers of telecommunications transport
services . The Company believes its switch-based network architecture represents
a demand-driven approach requiring less capital deployment than required for
the physical buildout of a fiber optic infrastructure . This architecture also
allows the Company to allocate transport from its collocations to its host
switch sites among various vendors to seek to achieve cost efficiencies .
Further, build-out time frames are minimized allowing the Company to begin
offering services in a market in as little as six months . Management believes
the Company's network architecture has and will continue to enable it to (i)
rapidly penetrate and expand its addressable market, (ii) achieve cost
effective network operations and economies of scale in sales and marketing,
(iii) secure a physical presence for collocation in ILEC central offices before
space becomes more difficult to obtain, (iv) maximize economic returns when
compared to total service resale and other network construction alternatives
and (v) take advantage of technology that facilitates the convergence of voice
and data services .

In 1998, the Company deployed a fully digital ATM backbone connecting its
host switch sites in each of its service territories . This backbone provides
for intro-Company transport when applicable, increased transport cost
efficiencies and the digital transport architecture required for data
transmissions . During 1999, the Company plans to introduce a portfolio of high
speed data services for remote local are network ("LAN") and Internet access .
The Company's first data offering is being developed to be a feature-rich,
competitively-priced Internet service marketed as MGCi .com . This product is
expected to be launched during the second quarter of 1999 .

The Company also intends to offer a converged voice and data solution to
targeted prospects utilizing digital subscriber line ("xDSL") technology as the
transport mechanism . Customer premise equipment ("CPE"), also known as
integrated access devices will be deployed connecting back to the digital
subscriber line access multiplexers (OSLAMS) located at the Company's
collocation and host switch sites . This equipment will allow the Company to
offer multiple voice connections and dedicated high-speed data transmissions
over a single copper loop or T1 connection . By extending the network
intelligence to the customers' premise, the Company can offer a total

	

-
communications solution to small business and residential customers . Management
believes this additional service offering will provide incremental revenue as
well as additional gross margin potential by virtue of not requiring additional
transport costs . The Company, recently entered into a purchase agreement with an
equipment vendor to provide the CPE and DSLAM equipment for the initial
deployment in the Las Vegas market .



BUSINESS STRATEGY

MGC's o't-ective is - :, become the primary orc,.ider o_° te-ecommunications
ser:-_es to its ex--s-inc and target . . ..tt ., ., ._rs . ..e'.. __ements .,= t ::e Company's
strateg_: incl,de :

Target Small Business and Residea_a_ users . The Company believes the
small business and residential customer base is the largest segment of the
telecommunications market in the United States, based on access lines in
service . The Company is targeting suburban areas of Tier I Markets because
these areas have concentrated numbers of small businesses (3-50 lines),
Internet Service Providers ("ISPs"), pay phone operators, multiple dwelling
unit customers and single family residences . The Company believes its only
significant switch-based competition for these customers in these markets is
the ILEC .

Implement Rapid Service Rollout . The Company's strategy is to address the
greatest percentage of its target market as quickly as possible . To accomplish
this, the Company has accelerated its ILEC central office collocation program
and is rapidly deploying its combined local and long distance switches,
unbundled transport and local loops and data services infrastructure in each
of its markets .

Deploy a Capital Efficient Network . MCC is one of the first ICPs to
utilize a network strategy of purchasing and deploying switches, collocating in
the central off -ces of the ILEC and leasing the necessary transport . The
Company employs three basic types of transport : (i) unbundled loops which
connect a customer to the Company's collocated facilities in an ILEC central
office, (ii) local transport which connects the company's collocation
equipment to its switching centers that house its Nortel DMS 500 circuit-based
local and long distance switches and data switching equipment, and (iii) long
distance transport utilizing a dedicated leased ATM backbone which delivers
fully digital, packetized voice from its switching centers to connect its
customers' long distance calls to national and international destinations .
Management believes this network strategy provides for a demand-driven capital
deployment plan that will provide an attractive return on invested capital .

Control Customer Elements of the Network . The Company obtains the ability
to serve its customers through the acquisition of local loop connections . Upon
leasing a line from the ILEC, the Company effectively places the customer on
its network . This connection serves =q the platform for delivering the
Company's current and future communication services to the customer . Any
changes to the customer's service profile, including service enhancements, are
under the direct control of the Company, with the exception of repairs which
are infrequent and may require the participation of the ILEC's network
maintenance staff .



Ensure Timely and .accurate Provisioning Process . The Company believes one
o°_ the ::-:evs t_ _ts success is effectively managing the provisioning process so
that new customers are transferred from t . ._ ILEC's network to _'.'..̂e Company's
netwer _n a . . ac__rate and time : . fash-c. . . -he ,.t can ": has ccmmitted
s :gn:_ :tant t_me and reso~rtes t_ __ :-sL-c -.� __ -= :_--e ..t
processes in eac : .̂ o`

'
- _ts markets .. __ close__:^monatY_ - :LEC 1-ata :lat :or.

performance ' _ ., assure_orov :sioninc is in a ttordancexith the standards set
forth in the `Company's interconnection agreement with the ~ILEC . During 1998,
the Company developed electronic bonding capabilities and is currently
utilizing various degrees of electronic order entry with each of the five ILECS
with which it does business in an effort to further improve provisioning
performance .

Focus on Targeted Sales and Marketing Effort . The Company's sales
programs include direct sales to business customers, vendor and affinity
programs, direct mail, and targeted advertising, particularly for residential
customers . The Company has both local and national sales personnel for business
customers and has centralized its sales order personnel for residential
customers . The Company's national sales group concentrates on large basic
telephone service users such as multi-dwelling unit owners, customer owned,
coin operated telephones ("COCOT") operators and ISP customers . The local sales
group solicits small business customers and coordinates activities with
equipment vendors .

Provide Quality Customer Service . The Company utilizes a centralized team
of customer sales and service representatives to coordinate initial residential
inquiries and orders, as well as post-installation, billing and customer care
related issues for all customers . The CSRs are able to leverage the Company's
proprietary management information system to gain immediate access to the
Company's customer data, enabling quick and effective responses to customer
requests and needs at any time . Furthermore, this system permits the Company to
present its customers with one fully integrated monthly billing statement for
all communication services . By having a centralized call service center
operating on a 24 hour per day, seven day a week basis, the Company can
effectively control quality of service and the related training requirements .

Leverage Sophisticated Management Information System . A comprehensive
operations support system is a critical component to managing the Company's
business as well as offering superior customer service . The Company has
installed a fully automated, proprietary management information system designed
to provide comprehensive, integrated features addressing all aspects of its
business, including customer care, billing and collections, general ledger,
payroll, fixed asset tracking, and personnel management . The Company believes
this system is adaptable to changing circumstances and multiple ILEC
interfaces, and is scaleable to support the Company's operations throughout
its expected growth .

Capitalize on Management Expertise . The Company has recruited a team of
experienced business executives with entrepreneurial backgrounds . Maurice J .
Gallagher, Jr ., Chairman, has been a founder of a number of start-up
businesses, including valuJet and BankServ . Nield J . Montgomery, CEO and
President, has over 36 years of telephone experience, most recently with ICG
Communication, Inc . other executives have held senior management positions at
major telecommunications companies, including, among others, Sprint, Centel, .
NYNEX, Contel, GTE and MCI .



PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
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its markets in operation . During 1999, t-e Comcany_ _ ..tends to introduce dial-up
Internet service and bundled voice and high-speed data offerings . The
Company's specific product offerings include :

Business Lines
-

	

Single line business (with optional feature packages), Centrex
service, access trunks and customer owned coin operated telephone
lines ("COCOTs") .

Residential Lines
-

	

Single and second lines (including multi-dwelling unit lines) and
basic telephone service with optional feature packages .

Long Distance Services
-

	

Outbound 1+ .
-

	

Inbound 800/888 and calling cards (expected to be introduced during
the first half of 1999) .

Data Services
-

	

Nortel's Internet Thruway product (ISP ports) .
-

	

MGCi .com Internet service (expected to be introduced during the
second quarter of 1999) .

-

	

Bundled voice and high-speed data via XDSL technology (expected to
be introduced during 1999) .

During 1998, the Company contracted for the use of IXC Communications
Inc .'s fiberoptic network on a resale basis to provide long distance services .
The Company offers everyday prices to its customers at $ .10 per minute or less
for continental United States direct dial long distance calls and more
attractive rates for customers with greater volumes . Moreover, the Company is
able to bill domestic calls in six second increments . To obtain the Company's
long distance rates, customers have to purchase the Company's switched local
service . The Company believes it can offer competitive long distance rates
because calls originating through the Company's switches eliminate a portion of
the switched access charges . To augment its underlying network flexibility and
gain further transport economies, in the fourth quarter of 1998, the Company
also contracted with Qwest Communications on a resale basis . During 1999, the
Company will continue to explore transport alternatives to seek to assure a
robust network transport at a low cost .

The Company has signed agreements with each ILEC and other carriers in
its markets for the provisioning of number portability, operator and directory
services, 911 services and Yellow Page and White Page listings . Local number
portability (LNP) was implemented in each of the Company's markets during 1998
for customers that desire to retain existing telephone numbers by means of
remote call forwarding mechanisms . Operator services are offered through a
major long distance carrier or ILEC . Emergency 911 services are provisioned
through links to the ILEC switch which, in turn, is connected to a 911 service
bureau . The Company's proprietary management information system updates
customer addresses and immediately supplies them to the appropriate emergency
authorities . In addition, the Company's interconnection agreement with the ILEC
in each of its markets contains a provision requiring- the ILEC to list each of
the Company's business customers in the Yellow Pages . . -



MARKETS

SALES AND MARKETING
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cart because of
theirprc-competitive regulatory environments . The company is currently
exploring expansion possibilities into additional markets in 1999 predicated
on capital availability and other factors .

The Company concentrates its sales and marketing efforts on users of
basic telecommunications services . The specific customer groups the Company
targets are :

Small business customers that typically have between three and 50
lines .

Single family residential users .

Customer owned coin operated telephone providers (COCOTs) .

Multi-dwelling unit owners and managers (MDUs) .

Internet Service Providers (ISPs) .

The Company's highly focused marketing efforts seek to generate
well-managed, profitable growth through increased market share with minimal
customer churn . The Company's sales programs include direct sales efforts,
agent/vendor programs, telemarketing and targeted advertising .

As of February 28, 1999, the Company employed 51 local sales personnel
and four national sales personnel . Within each local market, the Company
expects to employ approximately ten sales personnel and two sales assistants .
The national sales force is responsible for identifying and soliciting
prospective multi-dwelling unit owners and managers, COCOT and ISP customers .
The local sales personnel solicit small business customers and coordinate
activities with equipment vendors . In the Company's Las Vegas market,
telemarketers are assigned to one or more local sales representatives to
generate leads and schedule appointments and, when practical, to close accounts
of five lines or less over the phone . Sales Assistants act as liaisons between
business customers and the Company's operational personnel to effect
coordinated transfers of service from the ILECs .

To complement its local and national sales representatives, the Company
utilizes established telephone equipment vendors as agents to whom it pays a
commission to sell the Company's local and long distance services in
conjunction with equipment sales to business customers .

Prior to service initiation and during the early stages of each market's
operation, the company seeks to begin promoting its name and establishing
awareness of its presence through focused public relations activities . To date,
the Company's inauguration of service in each of its existing markets has

	

-
generated meaningful publicity in both the print and broadcast media .
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market reaches a critical mass o-° collocat=cn expansion (expected to be within
9 to 12 months after initiation of service), the Company will employ more
broad-based general market media in order to achieve greater cost efficiencies
in its message delivery . These media options include the expanded use of radio
and full-run print publications . Initially, the advertising messages are
created to establish name awareness and credibility for the Company in each
new market . After the initiation of service, the messages are crafted to
specifically promote the Company's service offerings particularly towards the
residential audience . Additionally, the Company works closely with a national
directory clearinghouse to insure timely and accurate placement of its
directory advertising information in each market .

Customer Owned Coin Operated Telephone Providers . The Company has
been successful in targeting the COCOT segment in its markets because (i) the
Company generally offers such customers lower rates compared with the ILEC in
each market, and (ii) the Company provides its COCOT customers a sophisticated
management report that enables them to accurately bill IXCs for dial-around
compensation . The Company believes it is one of the only ICP or CLEC offering
such management reports in its markets . MGC currently has contracts with
several COCOT operators in each of its operational markets .

Multi-Dwelling Unit Owners and Managers . The Company also targets
apartments and multi-dwelling units by offering owners and managers a turn-key
telephone product for its occupants . To initiate such service at an apartment
complex, the Company will initially utilize the ILEC's unbundled loop from each
apartment to the Company's collocated equipment in the ILEC central office .
Once installed, the service will remain active for future tenants . Under the
Company's multi-dwelling unit program, the tenant does not have to arrange for
the service independently, pay deposits (which can be managed through the
deposit process for the apartment) or wait for installation . Additionally,
installation charges may be reduced from traditional amounts charged to
individual customers . After the Company and the apartment complex complete the
initial installation, the apartment owner/manager will be able to offer new
tenants telephone service the day the lease is signed . A call from the
apartment manager or the tenant will provide the necessary customer information
to begin service . Larger complexes (100 or more lines) will allow the Company
to economically install hardware at the apartment site and lease T1 spans to
transport the traffic directly to its switch, bypassing the ILEC's loops .

Internet Service Providers . In conjunction with the introduction of the
Company's ATM backbone, Nortel's Internet Thruway product was introduced to
MGC's ISP customers in February 1998 . By replacing the need for data modems,
the Internet Thruway eliminates the need for ISPs to purchase large amounts of
capital equipment to expand their business . The product is sold on a "per
port" basis to the ISP and the technology available with the Internet Thruway
allows an ISP to operate in any of MGC's markets without requiring a physical
presence in such market . Further, the Company has deployed the capability to
shift ISP traffic off its voice network at the point of origin . As a result,
the Company optimizes the voice ports of its DMS-500 switches while providing
ISP customers with a high quality data connection . Additionally, the Company
gains access by contract to the ISP's Internet customer base allowing it to
market.local and long distance service to that customer base .
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transport network . By using the ILEC's or zther c ',ecommunications ser: :ces
provider's fiber network interconnecting central offices and loops through
collocation, the Company seeks to reach a broad market of customers for a
fraction of the cost of a constructed fiber network .

The Company believes the traditional copper loop connection from the ILEC
central office to the end user (the "first mile") provides a cost-effective
solution in gaining control of the customer . The Company's cost of the loop to
actually facilitate service is not incurred until the sale event has occurred
and revenue can be generated from the customer . The Company continually
evaluates evolving technologies for cost-effective first mile solutions, and
recently entered into an agreement for the deployment cf xDSL based equipment
which will be installed during 1999 . This technology will facilitate the
convergence of voice and data services and is expected to provide substantial
transport cost savings as well as providing significant bandwidth improvement
when compared to currently deployed technology . The Company expects that future
additional products and services predicated on bandwidth enhancement will be
delivered via this technology .

The Company believes that it has the ab'.lity to lease the necessary
transport at reasonable prices in all its operational markets . Prior to the
passage of the Act in February 1996, ILEC's fiber transport was subject to
tariffs and usually priced substantially higher than a competing CAP/CLEC's .
with the passage of the Act, ILECs were required to lease their network
elements at cost based prices . MGC seeks to find two or three competing
transport suppliers in each of its markets with competitive prices .

In 1996, the Company installed its first Nortel DMS Boo digital switch in
Las Vegas and established collocation facilities in nine Sprint central
offices . Since that time the Company has continued its aggressive network
expansion . By the end of December 1998, the Company had seven operational DMS
500 circuit-based switches and had established over 200 collocation sites . This
network provides the Company access to over 11 million addressable lines as of
December 31, 1998 .

The Company's network architecture with its extensive reach through
collocation sites is expected to facilitate a rapid deployment of XDSL based
equipment during 1999 . This equipment will facilitate the convergence of voice
and data services and increase transport economies by carrying voice and data
traffic in packets from the' customer premise to the MGC network over a single
access circuit loop rather than the multiple circuits (one to one ratio)
currently required .

Switch Hardware . To date, the Company's circuit-based switching platform
is the Nortel DMS 500 . The DMS 500 system offers a flexible and cost effective
means of establishing a single point of presence in, and the ability to
provide revenue generating services to, both the local and long distance
services markets . The DMS 500 combines local switch functionality of the DMS
100 with long distance toll and tandem switching capability .

The Company's early-to-market strategy includes accelerated installation
into ILEC central office collocation facilities . The Company believes the
expertise it has developed in establishing collocation facilities will allow it
to efficiently handle continued network expansion including the installation of
central office equipment required by the planned deployment of xDSL technology .



Interconnection Agreements . The Company has interconnection agreements
with Sprint for operation in Las Vegas, BellSouth in Georgia and Florida, GTE
in California,

	

Pacific Bell ("PacBell") in California and Ameritech Corp .
("Ameritech") in Illinois . These agreements expire on various dates through
July 13GC . The Company believes it has secured favorable agreements which
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The Company has authority to operate as a __EC i n 7llincis, Georgia, Nevada,
California, Florida and Massachusetts . The Company will apply for additional
CLEC authority in additional states as deemed necessary to accommodate
expansion plans .

OPERATIONS

Customer Service . The Company strives to provide quality customer service
in each of its markets . This includes :

Personnel . CSRs and sales personnel who are well trained and
attentive to customers' needs . CSRs are available 24 hours a day,
seven days a week, 365 days a year .

Phones . Prioritizing the response to customer phone calls such that
calls are answered and responded to with minimal wait time .

Coordination . Coordinating service installation with both the
customer and the ILEC .

Customer Information . Keeping the customer informed if there is an
installation or repair problem and dedicating the necessary
resources to resolve the problem as soon as possible .

Billing. Providing the customer a timely bill which is
comprehensive, accurate and simple to read and understand .

Centralization . The Company has a centralized customer service center,
including a centralized call center in Las Vegas, which operates 24 hours a
day, seven days per week . Centralization allows the Company to control
personnel and their training to a greater degree than with call centers in each
city and thereby allowing the Company to provide consistent, high quality
customer service with lower overhead costs .

Automation . The Company believes automation of internal processes
contributes greatly to the overall success of a service provider and billing is
a critical element of any telephone company's operation . The Company's
management information system has been designed to allow a CSR to quickly
gather all the necessary information from a customer in a logical,
conversational manner, establish the appropriate billing and credit
information and electronically process the order with the ILEC for the local ,
loop provisioning . The system creates the correct emergency 911 address update
for new customers and supplies the required information to the appropriate
emergency authorities .

	

Concurrently, the system will establish the related
cost elements with the order to track the expense of the UNE leased from the
ILEC .

Thereafter, the system will track the progress of the order based on
electronic or facsimile updates from the ILEC . The installation desk will
follow the customer's order, seeking to ensure the installation .date is met .
Additionally, CSRS will be able to handle all other customer service
inquiries, including billing questions and repair calls with the information
available from the integrated system .



In addition, the Company's proprietary management information system has
been designed to track and bill all forms of local service, including line and
feature charges as well as long distance charges . Additionally, the billing
system can provide sophisticated solutions for business customers . Companies
desiring a single bal for many ',cc atiors, Summary :,ills only without detaii or
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LOW COST FOCUS

To offer service to its targeted segments of the market and seek to
obtain long term profitability, the Company seeks to create a low cost
structure and focus . The key components of this strategy are :

Low Cost Network Architecture . MGC has chosen to build an exclusively
switch-based network and to lease the necessary transport and local loops on an
incremental basis, as demand dictates, from ILECs, CAP/CLECs and other ICPs . As

precisely
developing

Standardized Switch/installation . For all of its circuit-based switching
applications, the Company plans to use Nortel switches, all configured in the
same manner providing ease of installation and integration into MGC's network .
The Company believes this approach will reduce the time to install its
switches .

Automation . An important component in producing a low cost environment is
automation of the processes involved . The Company has installed a proprietary
management information system designed to be a comprehensive, integrated system
that addresses all aspects of its business, including customer care and
billing, general ledger, payroll, fixed asset management, purchasing and
personnel . This system is fully scaleable and has been designed to support the
Company's operation as it grows .

Credit Policy . To minimize its bad debt exposure, the Company has
implemented a policy generally requiring new customers to meet minimum credit
standards or make deposits for specified services and estimated usage prior to
the initiation of services . Management believes the Company's current credit
and deposit policies are in line with and in some instances more conservative
than competing ILECS in its markets . Additional personnel have been dedicated
to collections and credit monitoring to lower the Company's credit exposure .

Efficient Customer Service . The Company has a centralized customer
service center, including a call center located in Las Vegas, which operates
24 hours per day, seven days per week . The centralized calling center handles
all inquiries and orders for new service . This centralization allows the
Company to control personnel and their training to a greater degree than with
call centers in each city .

Voice Over Data . The Company has deployed and is using its ATM data
network to interconnect all its territories . While using this network for data,
the Company is also making internal voice calls through this network . The
packetized voice transmission has been of good quality and the Company plans to
begin transporting interstate long distance calls via this network . The Company
currently expects the transport cost per minute for these calls to be less than
one cent .

a result, the company will not be burdened by the carrying cost of a
constructed transport network . This approach allows the Company to
target its capital expenditures to the specifics of each market and
conditions .
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General competition in each of the se_^iice categories provided by the
Company is discussed below .

Local Services . In each of its geographic markets, the Company faces
significant competition for the local services it offers from RBOCs and other
ILECs, which currently dominate their local telecommunications markets . These
companies all have long-standing relationships with their customers and have
financial, personnel and technical resources substantially greater than those
of MGC .

The Company also faces competition in most markets in which it does and
will operate from one or more CAP/CLECs or ICP operating fiber optic networks .
Other local service providers have operations or are initiating operations
within one or more of the Company's service areas . MGC expects AT&T (through
its acquisition of Teleport Communications Group, Inc .), WorldCom (through its
acquisition of MCI), Sprint and certain cable television providers, all of
which are substantially larger and have substantially greater financial
resources than the Company, to enter some or all of the markets the Company
serves . MGC also understands other entities have indicated their desire to
enter the local exchange services market within specific metropolitan areas
served or targeted by MGC .

In addition, a continuing trend toward consolidation and strategic
alliances within the communications industry could result in significant new
competition for the Company . AT&T and MCI have begun to enter the local
services market through acquisitions and internal growth . other potential
competitors of the Company include utility companies, other long distance
carriers and wireless telephone systems . The Company cannot predict the number
of competitors that will emerge as a result of existing or new federal and
state regulatory or legislative actions .

Competition in all of the Company's market areas is based on quality,
reliability, customer service and responsiveness, service features and price .
The Company intends to keep its prices at levels below those of the ILECs while
providing, in the opinion of the Company, a higher level of service and
responsiveness to its customers . Innovative packaging and pricing of basic
telephone services is expected to pro- " de competitive differentiation for the
Company in each of its markets .

Although the ILECs are generally subject to greater pricing and
regulatory constraints than other local network service providers, ILECs are
achieving increasing pricing flexibility for their local services as a result
of recent legislative and regulatory developments . The ILECs have continued to
lower rates, resulting in downward pressure on prices for certain services .

Long Distance Services . The Company competes with AT&T, MCI WorldCom,
Sprint and a host of other second and third tier providers in the long
distance services market . Many of the Company's competitors have long-standing
relationships with their customers and have financial, personnel and technical
resources substantially greater than those of MGC . In providing these
services, the Company will focus on quality service and low cost to
distinguish itself in a very competitive marketplace . In addition, the Company
may face additional competitive challenges if .the price of long distance
minutes falls as a result of decreased access charges . The Company believes
the introduction of its ATM backbone and Internet Thruway products will enable
it to compete for ISP traffic on the basis of the quality and low cost of its
services ; however, the market for such ISP traffic is extremely competitive .



GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS
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Company is unable to predict .

Federal Regulation . The Company must comply with the requirements of
common carriage under the Communications Act of 1934 (the "Communications
Act"), as amended . Comprehensive amendments to the Communications Act were
made by the Act, which was signed into law on February 8, 1996 . The Act
effected plenary changes in regulation at both the federal and state levels
that affect virtually every segment of the telecommunications industry . The
stated purpose of the Act is to promote competition in all areas of
telecommunications and to reduce unnecessary regulation to the greatest extent
possible . While it will take years for the industry to feel the full impact of
the Act, it is already clear the legislation provides the Company with both
opportunities and challenges .

The Act gives the FCC the authority to forebear from regulating companies
if it finds such regulation does not serve the public interest, and directs the
FCC to review its regulations for continued relevance on a regular basis . As a
result of this directive, a number of the regulations that historically applied
to IXCs have been and may continue to be eliminated in the future . While it is
therefore expected that a number of regulations that were developed prior to
the Act will be eliminated in time, certain of those which apply to the
Company at present are discussed below .

Pursuant to the Communications Act, the company is subject to the general
requirement that its charges and regulations for communications services must
be "just and reasonable" and that it may not make any "unjust or unreasonable
discrimination" in its charges or regulations .

The FCC has established different levels of regulation for dominant and
non-dominant carriers . Of domestic common carrier service providers, only GTE,
the RBOCs and other ILECs are classified as dominant carriers, and all other
providers of domestic common carrier services, including the Company, are
classified as non-dominant carriers . The Act provides the FCC with the
authority to forebear from imposing any regulations it deems unnecessary,
including requiring non-dominant carriers to file tariffs . On November 1,
1996, in its first major exercise of regulatory forbearance authority granted
by the Act, the FCC issued an order detariffing domestic interexchange
services . The order required mandatory detariffing and gave carriers such as
the Company nine months to withdraw federal tariffs and move to contractual
relationships with its customers . This order subsequently was stayed by a
federal appeals court . Until further action is taken by the FCC or the courts,
the Company will continue to maintain tariffs for these services .

Although the FCC does not directly regulate local exchange service, which
is within the jurisdiction of state regulatory authorities, its actions may
impact directly on such service . The Act greatly expands the FCC's
interconnection requirements on the ILECs . The Act requires the ILECs to : (i)
provide physical collocation, which allows companies such as MGC and other
interconnectios to install and maintain their own network termination equipment
in ILEC central offices, and virtual collocation only if requested or if
physical collocation is demonstrated to be technically unfeasible, (ii)
unbundle components of their local service networks so other providers of
local service can compete for a wider range of local services customers, (iii)
establish "wholesale" rates for their services to promote resale by CLECs and
other competitors, (iv) establish number portability, which will allow a
customer to retain its existing phone number if it switches from the ILEC to a
competitive local service provider, (v) establish dialing parity, which
ensures customers will not detect a quality difference in dialing telephone
numbers or accessing operators or emergency services, and (vi) provide

12



nondiscriminatory access to telephone poles, ducts, conduits and
rights-of-way . In addition, the Act requires ILECS to compensate competitive
carriers for traffic originated by the ILECS and terminated on the competitive
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1997, the Court issued a decision vacat=c the interconnection pricing rules
and "most favored nation" rules as well as certain. other interconnection
rules . On January 25, 1999, .the Supreme Court substantially overturned the
Eighth Circuit, holding that the FCC had pricing jurisdiction over unbundled
network elements, and establishing the ability of a CLEC to "pick and choose"
among the most favorable terms from the existing agreements of other CLECs .
The Supreme Court also required the FCC to determine those unbundled network
elements which are available to competitors under the "necessary and impair"
standard . while the full impact of this decision cannot be measured at this
time, the Company believes that it will have no negative impact on its
operations .

As a result of provisions of the Act, the Company has taken the steps
necessary to be a provider of local exchange services . MGC has obtained CLEC
certification in six states . In addition, the Company has successfully
negotiated interconnection agreements with five ILECS . Certain rates in these
interconnection agreements have been established by the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) and are subject to adjustment upon final negotiations . The
Company has recorded UNE expenses related to Sprint (Nevada) using management's
best estimate of the probable outcome for the final negotiated rates . These
rates are less than the FCC established rates, however management believes the
resolution of this matter will not have an adverse effect on the Company's
financial position, results of operations, or liquidity .

The Act's interconnection requirements also apply to interexchange
carriers and all other providers of telecommunications services, although the
terms and conditions for interconnection provided by these carriers are not
regulated as strictly as interconnection provided by the ILECS . This may
provide the Company with the ability to reduce its own access costs by
interconnecting directly with non-ILECS, but may also cause the Company to
incur additional administrative and regulatory expenses in replying to
interconnection requests from other carriers .

On May 16, 1997, the FCC released an order that fundamentally
restructured the "access charges" ILECS charge to interexchange carriers and
end user customers . The Company's analysis of the FCC's order leads it to
believe the FCC's new access charge rules do not adversely affect the
Company's business plan, and they do in fact present significant opportunities
for new entrants,

	

including the Company . Aspects of the order may be changed
and to the extent access charges may be reduced in the future, competitors
will have an increased ability to offer low cost long distance services .
Numerous parties have asked the FCC to reconsider portions of its new rules .

As part of its pro-competitive policies, the Act may free the RBOCS from
the judicial order that prohibited their provision of interLATA services .
Specifically, the Act permits RBOCs to provide long distance services outside
their local service regions immediately, and will permit them to provide
in-region interLATA service upon demonstrating to the FCC and state regulatory
agencies they have adhered to the FCC's interconnection regulations . Many
ILECS have filed applications for in-region long distance authority none of
which have been granted by the FCC as of March 15, 1999 . At least two of these
decisions have been appealed . Additional applications are being filed and will
be considered by the FCC . The FCC is also considering_ an RBOC proposal to
permit RBOCs to eventually offer high speed, interLATA data services within
their operating regions through a separate subsidiary, without first having to
demonstrate that they have met the FCC interconnection regulations discussed
above . Two RBOCs, US West and Ameritech, entered into "teaming agreements"
with Qwest Communications International, Inc . ("Qwest"), whereby the RBOCS
would solicit customers for Qwest's long distance service and handle billing of
those customers in exchange for a fee . These agreements would have permitted
the RBOCS to offer their local customers a package of local and long distance
services in competition with the Company's offerings even though the RBOCs
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would not themselves be providing the long distance component . The Company and
certain IXCs requested the FCC to block the proposed arrangement and initiated
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while the Act reduces regulation to which nor.-dominant local exchange
carriers are subject, it also reduces the - evel of regulation that applies to
the ILECs and increases their ability to respond quickly to competition from
the Company and others . For example, in accordance with the Act, the FCC has
applied "streamlined" tariff regulation to the ILECs which greatly accelerates
the time required for changes to tariffed service rates to take effect and
eliminates the requirement that ILECS obtain FCC authorization before
constructing new domestic facilities . These actions will allow ILECs to change
service rates more quickly in response to competition . Similarly, the FCC is
considering proposals that may provide significant new pricing flexibility to
ILECs . To the extent such increased pricing flexibility is provided, the
Company's ability to compete with ILECs for certain service may be adversely
affected .

On May 8, 1997, in compliance with the requirements of the Act, the FCC
released an order establishing a new Universal Service support fund, which
provides subsidies to carriers that provide service to under-served individuals
and customers in high cost areas, and to companies that provide
telecommunications services and wiring for schools and libraries . The Company
is required r.o contribute into the Universal Service support fund, but may
also be eligible to obtain subsidies for services it provides . The new
Universal Service rules will be administered jointly by the FCC and state
regulatory authorities, many of which are still in the process of establishing
their administrative rules . The net financial effect of these regulations on
the Company cannot be determined at this time .

State Regulation . The Company has satisfied state requirements to provide
CLEC and intrastate long distance service in Nevada, Georgia, Illinois,
California, Florida and Massachusetts . State authorizations vary in their
regulatory intensity . State laws and regulations that prohibit, or have the
effect of prohibiting, local and intrastate long distance telecommunications
competition have been preempted under the Act . Although the Act's prohibition
of state barriers to competitive entry took effect on February 8, 1996,
various legal and policy matters must be resolved before the Act's policies
are fully implemented . The Company continues to support efforts at the state
government level to encourage competition in its markets under the federal law
and to permit CLECs to operate on the same basis and with the same rights as
the ILECs .

In most states, the Company is required to file tariffs setting forth the
terms, conditions, and prices for services which are classified as intrastate .
In some states, the Company's tariff can list a range of prices for particular
services and in others such prices can be set on an individual customer basis .
The Company is not at this time subject to price cap or to rate of return
regulation in any of its current or planned expansion markets .



Local Goverrment Authorizations . The Company may be required to obtain
from municipal authorities construction oermi :s to construct its faccities in
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There are no assurances that certain munic - talities that do not currently
impose fees will not seek to impose fees in the future, nor is there any
assurance that, following the expiration of existing franchises, fees will
remain at their current levels .

PERSONNEL

As of February 28, 1999, there were 453 employees of the Company, the
majority of whom were located in Las Vegas . The Company expects to
substantially increase its employee count as it focuses on selling into the
network footprint that was established during 1998 and as it continues to
expand its market reach in 1999 .

MGC has non-disclosure and non-compete agreements with all of its
executive employees . None of MGC's employees is represented by a collective
bargaining agreement .

RISK FACTORS

LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY

The Company began providing local telephone services in December 1996 in
Nevada . Since then, the Company began providing local telephone services in
Atlanta, Chicago, southern Florida and selected suburban areas of Southern
California including the Los Angeles area and San Diego and began offering long
distance services in February 1998 . To date, substantially all of the
Company's revenues have come from such services . The Company expects to
continue to increase the size of its operations in the future .

Although many of the Company's managerial and supervisory personnel have
substantial experience in the telecommunications industry, the Company has a
very limited operating history . As a result, there is limited historical
financial information about the Company upon which to base an evaluation of
the Company's future prospects or performance . Furthermore, no historical
basis exists for estimating the number of customers or the amount of revenues
the Company's operations will generate or for determining whether the Company
will compete successfully in the telecommunications industry .

RISKS DUE TO DEBT

As of December 31, 1998, the Company had approximately $157 .3 million
total outstanding debt . The Company's level of indebtedness could have
important consequences to investors, including the following :

A substantial portion of the Company's cash flow from operations
will be dedicated to paying principal and interest on its debt,
thereby reducing funds available for other purposes .



The Company's significant amount of debt could make the Company
more vulnerable to changes in general economic conditions or
increases i . .̂ prevailing interes= rates .
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The Company may be more leveraged than certain of its competitors,
which may result in a competitive disadvantage .

The Company recorded net losses of $32 .1 million and $10 .8 million in
1998 and 1997, respectively . The Company anticipates that earnings will be
insufficient to cover fixed charges through 1999 . In order for the Company to
meet its debt service obligations, the Company will need to substantially
improve its operating results . The Company cannot assure investors that it
will achieve or sustain profitability or positive EHITDA in the future or that
its operating results will be sufficient for the Company to meet its debt
service obligations . In the absence of such operating results, the Company
could face substantial liquidity problems and might be required to seek
additional financing through the issuance of debt or equity securities .
However, the Company could be unsuccessful in obtaining such financing on
favorable terms when needed .

Capital Requirements

The development and expansion of the Company's business and services and
the development of new markets and products will require significant capital
as well as considerable operational and administrative expenditures . A
substantial portion of such expenditures are incurred before the realization
of revenues, resulting in negative cash flow until an adequate customer base
is established . Although its revenues have increased since its inception, the
Company has incurred significant increases in expenses due to the expansion of
its services and customer base .

The Company expects to fund its capital requirements through existing
resources, debt or equity financing and internally generated funds . The
Company expects that continued expansion of its business may require raising
substantial additional equity and/or debt capital . However, the Company might
not be successful in raising sufficient debt or equity capital on acceptable
terms . In addition, the Company's future capital requirements will depend
upon a number of factors, including marketing expenses, staffing levels and
customer growth, as well as other factors that are not within the Company's
control, such as competitive conditions, government regulation and capital
costs . Failure to generate or otherwise access sufficient funds may require
the Company to delay or abandon some of its future expansion or capital
expenditures, which would have a negative impact on its growth and its ability
to compete in the telecommunications industry .

Risks Associated with Implementation of Growth Strategy

The development and expansion of the Company's business and its entry
into new markets will depend on, among other things, the Company's ability to
achieve the following goals in a timely manner, at reasonable costs and on
satisfactory terms and conditions :

-

	

Accurately assess potential new markets

Purchase, install and operate switches and other equipment

Negotiate suitable interconnection and collocation arrangements with
ILECS - on satisfactory terms and conditions

16



Identify, hire and retain qualified personnel

Lease access to suitable transport networks

The :ompanv has experienced rapid growth since its inception, and
management believes that sustained growth will place a strain on operational,
human and financial resources . The Company's ability to manage its expansion
effectively will also depend on the continued development of plans, systems
and controls for its operational, financial and management needs . Because of
its limited operating history, the Company may be unable to satisfy these
requirements or otherwise manage its growth effectively . Any failure to
satisfy these requirements could have a negative effect on the Company's
financial condition and its ability to fully implement its expansion plans .
Lack of New Service Acceptance by Customers

While CLECs have had some success inducing business customers to utilize
an alternative local exchange provider, the Company believes it is currently
the only integrated communications provider targeting residential customers in
its markets . The success of the Company will be dependent upon the
willingness of such customers to accept the Company as an alternative provider
of local, long distance, data and Internet service . The lack of such
acceptance could have a negative effect on the Company .

Products and Services

To date, the Company has offered only local and long distance
telecommunications services . In order to address the needs of its target
customers, the Company is in the process of developing additional products and
services, such as high speed data services and Internet services . However,
the Company might not be able to provide the range of telecommunication
services that its target customers need or desire . Furthermore, the Company
cannot assure investors that its new product offerings will be attractive to
its existing and prospective customers .

Technology, Equipment and Interconnection Risks

An essential element of the Company's current strategy is the
provisioning of switched local telephone service . In implementing its
strategy, the Company may use new or existing technologies in new
applications . During the testing of this equipment, the Company may
experience technological problems that cannot be resolved . Expansion is also
dependent on the ability to obtain collocation space, which is obtained from
the ILECs on a first come/first served basis .

The Company cannot assure investors that installation of the switches
and associated electronics will continue to be completed on a timely basis,
nor can the Company assure investors that it will be able to obtain
collocation sites in the markets it desires . In addition, the development and
expansion of the Company's business and its entry into new markets will be
dependent on, among other things, its ability to lease or purchase suitable
sites, obtain equipment on a timely basis, obtain sufficient blocks of
telephone numbers and negotiate suitable interconnection and collocation
arrangements with ILECs on satisfactory terms . These factors and others could
adversely affect the expansion of the Company's customer base and commencement
of operations in new markets .

	

If the Company is not able to expand its
customer base or enter new markets in accordance with its plans, the growth of
its business would be negatively affected .
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Reliance on Third Parties

Because a key element of its business and growth strategy is the leasing
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following :

The Company must negotiate and renew favorable interconnection and
collocation agreements with other companies . The rates charged to
the Company under the interconnection agreements might not continue
to be low enough for the company to attract a sufficient number of
customers and to operate the business on a profitable basis . In
certain cases, the rates that have been or will be charged to the
Company are subject to regulatory proceedings, the result of which
the Company is unable to accurately predict .

The Company relies on the timeliness of other companies (ILECs and
CAP/CLECS) which process the Company's orders for customers
switching to the Company's service and for the maintenance of
unbundled network elements ("UNEs") in order to assure uninterrupted
service . The ILECs have had little experience in providing UNEs to
other companies . Therefore, the ILECs might not be able to continue
to provide and maintain the UNEs in a prompt and efficient manner .

The Company's interconnection agreements currently provide for the
Company's connection and maintenance orders to receive attention at
parity with the 1LEC's or other CAP/CLEC's customers and for the
ILEC to provide adequate trunking capacity to keep blockage within
industry standards . However, the ILECs might not continue to comply
with their network provisioning requirements . From time to time, in
Las Vegas, the Company has experienced excessive blockage in the
delivery of calls from the ILEC to the Company's switches due to
inadequate trunk provisioning by the ILEC . Blocked calls result in
customer dissatisfaction which may result in the loss of Company
business .

Risks Due to Technology : Potential System or Security Failure

The Company's success in marketing its services to business and
residential users requires the Company to provide reliable service . The
Company's networks are subject to physical damage, power loss, capacity
limitations, software defects, breaches of security (by computer virus, break-
ins or otherwise) and other factors which may cause interruptions in service
or reduced capacity for the Company's customers . Interruptions in service,
capacity limitations or security breaches could have a negative effect on
customer acceptance and, therefore, on the Company's business, financial
condition and results of operations .

Rapid Technological Changes

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant
changes in technology . while the Company believes that for the foreseeable
future these changes will not materially affect or hinder the company's
ability to acquire necessary technologies, the Company cannot predict the
effect of technological changes on its business . Thus, technological
developments could negatively affect the Company .
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Further Growth Risks -- Qualified Personnel
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The Company
believes that its future success will depend in large part on its continued
ability to attract and retain highly skilled and qualified personnel .

The Company's business is managed by a small number of key management
and operating personnel, whose loss could have a negative impact on the
Company's business . None of the Company's key executives is a party to a long
term employment agreement with the company . Furthermore, the Company does not
maintain key man insurance on its officers . The Company's inability to
effectively expand, train and manage its employee base could have a negative
effect on its business .

Risks Associated with Automation

The Company employs a proprietary management information system which is
expected to be an important factor in its success . If the management
information system fails or is unable to perform as expected, it would have a
substantial adverse effect on the Company . Furthermore, problems may arise
with higher processing volumes or with additional automation features, which
could potentially result in system breakdowns and delays and additional,
unanticipated expense to remedy the defect or to replace the defective system
with an alternative system .

Risks Related to Internet Services
Maintenance of Peering Relationships . The Internet is comprised of many

Internet service providers and underlying transport carriers who operate their
own networks and interconnect with other Internet service providers at various
points . As the Company commences the operation of Internet services, transport
will be provided via wholesale carriers . The Company anticipates that as
volume increases related to its Internet traffic, peering agreements will be
entered into for the exchange of traffic with other Internet service
providers .

Peering relationships with other Internet service providers will permit
the Company to exchange traffic with other Internet service providers without
incurring settlement charges . Although the Company intends to meet the
industry's current standards for peering, there is no guarantee that other
national Internet service providers will maintain peering relationships with
MGC . In addition, the requirements associated with maintaining peering
relationships with the major national Internet service providers may change .
The Company cannot provide assurance that it will be able to expand or adapt
its network infrastructure to meet any new requirements on a timely basis, at
a reasonable cost, or at all .

Potential Liability of on-Line Service Providers . United States law
relating to the liability of on-line service providers and Internet service
providers for information carried on, disseminated through, or hosted on their
systems is currently unsettled . If liability for materials carried on or
disseminated through their systems is imposed on Internet service providers,
the Company would likely implement measures to minimize its exposure to such
liability . Such measures could require the Company to expend substantial
resources or discontinue certain product or service offerings . In addition,
increased attention on liability issues, as a result of litigation,
legislation or legislative proposals could adversely affect the growth and use
of Internet services .
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The Company believes that various legislative initiatives, including the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, have removed barriers to local telephone
service competition . Nevertheless, in light of the passage of the
Telecommunications Act, regulators are also likely to provide ILECs with
increased pricing flexibility as competition increases . If ILECs are
permitted to lower their rates substantially or engage in excessive volume or
term discount pricing practices, the net income or cash flow of the Company
could be materially adversely affected .

In its existing markets and the markets into which it intends to expand,
the Company faces significant competition for its local telephone services .
ILECs have long-standing relationships with their customers, which
relationships may create competitive barriers . Furthermore, ILECS may have the
potential to subsidize competitive service from monopoly service revenues . A
continuing trend toward business combinations and alliances in the
telecommunications industry may create larger, more powerful competitors .

The Company also faces competition in the markets in which it operates
from one or more CAP/CLECs operating fiber optic networks . Many of the
Company's existing and potential competitors have financial, personnel and
other resources significantly greater than those of the Company .

The Company competes with AT&T, MCI Worldcom, Sprint and others in the
long distance services market . Additionally, recent federal legislation
permits the Regional Bell Operating Companies ("RBOCs") to provide long
distance services once certain criteria are met . Once the RBOCs begin to
provide such services, they will be in a position to offer single source
service similar to the service the Company offers . In addition, several
interexchange carriers have announced their intention to enter the local
exchange services market, which is facilitated by the Act's resale and
unbundled network element provisions . The Company cannot predict the number
of competitors that will emerge as a result of existing or new federal and
state regulatory or legislative actions, but increased competition from the
RBOCS with respect to long distance services or from IXC's with respect to
local exchange services could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business .

Competition for Data/Internet Customers

In its markets for data products and services, specifically those
directed at Internet service Providers and end-users of Internet products and
services, the Company will face competition from a number of companies focused
on the data services market, including companies with significantly greater
financial resources, greater name recognition, more extensive business
experience and greater market and service capabilities than the Company . In
particular, the Company will be required to compete with companies that design
and manufacture products exclusively for this market and large system
integrators . Substantially all of the Company's current and prospective

20



Competitive Reaction

competitors in the data services market have substantially greater market
presence and financial, to^hn :cal, marketing and other resources than the
Compan": .
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for its services wnich are
below those currently charged by ILECs, = T ECs or new competitors with greater
capital and resources than the Company may meet or undercut the Company's
price structure and prevent the Company from attaining the share of the local
telecommunications market necessary to achieve profitable operations . The
Company's ability to meet price competition may depend on its ability to
operate at costs equal to or lower than its competitors or potential
competitors . There is a risk that competitors, perceiving the Company to lack
capital resources, may undercut the Company's rates or increase their services
in an effort to force the Company out of business . Competitors may also
attempt to place their existing customer base under long-term contractual
agreements which may inhibit the Company's ability to convert these users to
its services . In addition, the success of the Company will ultimately depend
on management's ability to react expeditiously and effectively to exigencies
that have not been taken into account in the Company's business plan .

Regulation

The Company is subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local
regulation . The Company is not currently subject to price cap or rate of
return regulation, nor is it currently required to obtain FCC authorization
for the installation, acquisition or operation of its network facilities . The
Company is generally subject to certification and tariff or price list filing
requirements for intrastate services by state regulators . Although passage of
the Telecommunications Act should result in increased opportunities for
companies competing with the ILECs, changes in current or future regulations
adopted by the FCC or state regulators or other legislative or judicial
initiatives relating to the telecommunications industry could have an adverse
effect on the Company .

Furthermore, while the Telecommunications Act reduces regulations to
which non-dominant local exchange carriers are subject, it also reduces the
level of regulation that applies to the ILECs and increases their ability to
respond quickly to competition from the Company and others . In addition,
although the Telecommunications Act provides incentives to ILECs to negotiate
interconnection agreements with local competitors, there can be no assurance
these ILECs will negotiate quickly with competitors such as the Company for
the required interconnection of the competitor's networks with those of the
ILECS or that interconnection agreements will be on terms favorable to the
Company .

For a further discussion on the effects of Governmental regulation on
the Company see "Business - Government Regulations" in Item I of this Annual
Report .

Risks of Future Acquisitions

The Company may acquire other businesses as a means of expanding into
new markets or developing new services . The Company--is unable to predict
whether or when any prospective acquisitions will occur or the likelihood of
such a transaction being completed on favorable terms and conditions . Such
transactions involve certain risks including, but not limited to :

	

(1)
difficulties assimilating acquired operations and personnel, (2) potential
disruptions of the Company's ongoing business, (3) the diversion of resources



Year 2000 Risk

Lack of Dividend History

Forward Looking Statements
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For a discussion of certain risks presented by the ability of the
Company and others on whom the Company relies to successfully make their
computer systems Year 2000 compliant, see "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Impact of Year
2000" in Item 7 of this Annual Report .

The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common
Stock and does not expect to declare any such dividends in the foreseeable
future . Payment of any future dividends will depend upon the earnings and
capital requirements of the Company, the Company's debt facilities and other
factors the Hoard of Directors considers appropriate . The Company intends to
retain its ea-pings, if any, to finance the development and expansion of its
business . Furthermore, the Company's ability to declare and pay cash
dividends on its Common stock is restricted by certain covenants in the
Indenture relating to the Company's 138 Senior Secured Notes due 2004 (the
"Senior Secured Notes") .

Certain statements contained in this Report that state the company's or
management's intentions, hopes, beliefs, expectations or predictions of the
future are forward-looking statements . Management wishes to caution the
reader these forward-looking statements such as the Company's plans to expand
its existing network through collocation, statements regarding development,
introduction and acceptance of the Company's products or business, statements
regarding the Company's ability to achieve or exceed its goals or reach
profitability in the future, statements regarding the adequacy or availability
of financing, statements regarding the outcome of regulatory proceeding or the
effect of government regulations or similar statements contained in this
Report regarding matters that are not historical facts, are only estimates or
predictions . Actual results may differ materially as a result of risks facing
the Company or actual results differing from assumptions underlying such
statements . Such risks and assumptions include, but are not limited to, the
Company's ability to successfully market its existing and proposed services to
current and new customers in existing and planned markets, successfully
develop commercially viable data and Internet offerings, access markets,
install switches and obtain suitable locations for its switches, negotiate .and
renew suitable interconnect agreements with the ILECs, obtain an acceptable
level of cooperation from the ILECs, all in a time manner, at reasonable
cost and on satisfactory terms and conditions, as well as regulatory,
legislative and judicial developments that could materially affect the
Company's future results . All forward-looking statements made in this Report
are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements .



ITEM 2 .

	

PROPERTY

:n Las Vegas, the Compan.: has a __ .e . *ear _ease (exnir_ng in 2001, with a
f--:e :ear ==son for the site ..cuss.. .̂c __s swi=_ . . . In addition, the Company
leases space -n Las Vegas for its corporate headquarters, national customer
service operations, national sales person-el, Las Vegas sales personnel and
general administration . This lease expires -n 2003 . This facility is owned by a
limited liability company which is principally owned by two of the Company's
principal stockholders and Directors, Maurice J . Gallagher, Jr . and Timothy P .
Flynn .

The Company owns premises housing its switch facilities in its Ontario,
Chicago, Long Beach, San Diego and Fort Lauderdale locations . The switch site
in Atlanta has been leased for a term expiring in 2007 with certain renewal
options . Facilities housing the local sales and administration staff have been
leased in each market .

The Company places great importance on each switch facility and seeks to
insure maximum security and environmental control . MGC believes this can be
achieved through standalone structures . This approach minimizes the risk of
fire or other hazards from adjacent tenants or properties .

ITEM 3 .

	

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has filed various complaints against ILECs in order to seek
to enforce their compliance with regulations requiring their cooperation with
the provision of service by the company . These complaints have been filed
against Sprint Corporation in February and June 1998 before the Nevada Public
Utilities Commission, Ameritech in March 1998 before the Illinois Commerce
Commission, and BellSouth Telecommunications Inc . i n June 1998 before the
Georgia Public Service Commission .

The Company is also currently participating in costing dockets before
the Nevada Public Utilities Commission and California Public Utilities
Commission under which there will be established the amount payable by the
Company for its unbundled network elements ("UNEs") . Although rates for UNEs
are subject to change from time to time, the establishment of rates by the
respective public utilities commissions could have a material effect on the
Company's cost of revenues .

From time to time, the Company is engaged in other litigation and
governmental proceedings in the ordinary course of its business . The Company
does not believe that any such pending litigation or governmental proceedings
will have a material adverse effect on its results of operation or financial
condition .

ITEM 4 .

	

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None .
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ITEM 6 .

	

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

PART II

ITEM 5 .

	

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The Company's Common Stock, $ .001 par value, is traded on the NASDAQ
Stock Market under the symbol "MGCX ." As of March 15, !999, there were
approximately 164 holders of record of the Company's Common Stock . The
following sets forth the reported high and low sale prices for the Common
Stock for each fiscal quarter since the Company's Common Stock first commenced
trading on May 11, 1998 .

As of March 15, 1999 the closing price of the common stock was $8 .25 .

No cash dividends have ever been declared by the Company on its Common
Stock . The Company intends to retain earnings to finance the development and
growth of its business . Accordingly, the Company does not anticipate that any
dividends will be declared on its Common Stock for the foreseeable future .
Future payments of cash dividends, if any, will depend on the Company's
financial condition, results of operations, business conditions, capital
requirements, restrictions contained in agreements, future prospects and other
factors deemed relevant by the Company's Board of Directors . The Company's
ability to declare and pay dividends on its Common Stock is restricted by
certain covenants in the Indenture governing the Senior Secured Notes .

The information required by this Item is as follows :
(in thousands except

per
1998

share data)
1997 1996

Operating revenues $18,249 $3,791 $1
Net loss (32,065) ( 10,836) (1,491)
Basic and diluted loss per (2 .26) (1 .30) (2 .11)

share of common stock*
Total assets 252,119 191,977 12,339
Long-term debt including current maturities 157,295 156,637
Redeemable Series A Convertible Preferred Stock -- 16,665

* See Note 1 of Notes to Financial Statements

Fiscal year ended
D 1 . 18 High Sit

May 11, 1998 through June 30, 1998 $19 .56 $14 .00

Quarter Ending September 30, 1998 $17 .93 $ 8 .00

Quarter Ending December 31, 1998 $10 .50 $ 5 .25



ITEM 7 . MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW
MGG began. ., c :id°ng ccmpetit-ve 1cca - exc .̂a .-.ae services = ., sma':_

business and residential users : . .̂ December 1996, and in Februarv 1996, began
offering long distance services in its existing markets . MGC's network
strategy consists of purchasing and deploying switching equipment, collocating
equipment in the incumbent local exchange carriers' (ILEC) central offices and
leasing fiber optic transmission capacity from ILECS and other providers of
communications transport services . Currently, the company has switches fully
operational in Las Vegas, Atlanta, Chicago, southern Florida, and in selected
suburban areas of southern California, including the Los Angeles area and San
Diego .

The Company's 1997 revenues were generated from sales of
telecommunications services consisting primarily of local phone service,
switched access billings and non-recurring charges, principally installation
charges . In 1998, long distance services also contributed to the Company's
revenue base .

The Company's principal operating expenses consist of cost of operating
revenues, selling, general and administrative costs and depreciation and
amortization expense . Cost of operating revenues consists primarily c_° access
charges, line installation expenses, transport expenses, compensation expenses
of technical personnel, long distance expenses and central office facility
rentals . Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of
compensation expenses, advertising, provision for bad debts, professional fees
and facility rentals . Depreciation and amortization expense includes
depreciation on switching and collocation equipment as well as general
property and equipment .

During 1998, the Company expanded significantly with the installation of
four additional switches and the build out of 182 additional collocation
sites . As expected, both cost of operating revenues and selling, general and
administrative costs increased as many of the fixed costs of providing service
in new markets are incurred before significant revenue can be generated from
those markets . In addition, significant levels of marketing activity were
incurred in new markets in order for the Company to build its initial base of
customers .

The development and expansion of the Company's business has required and
will continue to require significant capital expenditures primarily consisting
of the purchase of communications switching and associated equipment, the
purchase of land for switching sites and the construction of buildings or
leasehold improvements to switching and collocation facilities . As part of its
"smart build" network strategy, the Company purchased and installed host
switches in each of its markets while leasing transport and unbundled networks
elements (UNES) from the ILEC and other CLECs . The Company believes this
facilities-based strategy, while initially increasing its level of capital
expenditures and operating losses, will enhance its long-term financial
performance in comparison to a resale strategy .

The Company has experienced operating losses and generated negative
EBITDA since inception and expects to continue to generate negative EBITDA
through the 1999 fiscal year while it continues to expand its networks and
develop its product offerings and customer base . There can be no assurance the
Company's revenue or customer base will grow or that the Company will be able
to achieve or sustain positive EBITDA .



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 1998 vs . 1997

Total operating revenues

	

the year ended December 3"1, 1998 were $18 .2
million as compared to $3 .8 million for the year ended December 31, 1997 . The
379% increase is a result o°_ the installation of four additional switches, an
increase in the number of lines in service and the introduction of long
distance service in early 1998 . The Company provided telecommunications
services in only Las Vegas until December, 1997 when service was initiated in
Atlanta and the Inland Empire region of Southern California . As a result of
the network expansion, service was also offered in Chicago as well as
additional suburban areas of Southern California, including San Diego during
1998 . The Company had 47,744 lines in service as of December 31, 1998 as
compared to 15,590 lines in service as of December 31, 1997, a 206% increase .

Cost of operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 1998 was
$17 .1 million as compared to $3 .9 million for the year ended December 31,
1997 . The 338& increase is due to the increased number of lines in service
during 1998, network expenses associated with long distance service, and
installation and operational expenses associated with the significant
expansion of the Company's network .

For the year ended December 31, 1998, selling, general and
administrative expenses totaled $17 .9 million a 1806 increase over the $6 .4
million for the year ended December 31, 1997 . The increase in expenses
resulted from increased costs attributable to the marketing of the Company's
services, delivery of customer service and to support the Company's continued
network expansion .

For the year ended December 31, 1998, depreciation and amortization was
$5 .2 million as compared to $1 .3 million for the year ended December 31, 1997 .
This increase is a result of placing additional assets in service during the
period in accordance with the company's planned build-out of its network . As
of December 31, 1998 the Company had seven operational switches and 207
collocation sites built out as compared to three switches and 25 collocations
sites as of December 31, 1997 .

Interest expense for fiscal 1998 totaled $19 .1 million as compared to
$5 .5 million for fiscal 1997 . The increase is primarily attributable to a full
year of interest incurred on the Senior Secured Notes issued by the Company in
September 1997 .

Interest income was $8 .8 million for the year ended December 31, 1998
compared to $2 .5 million for the year ended December 31, 1997 . The income is
attributable to earnings on investments made with the proceeds from the
issuance of Senior Secured Notes in September 1997 and with the proceeds from
the sale of the Company's common and Preferred Stock .

The Company incurred net losses of $32 .1 million and $10 .8 million
during the 1998 and 1997 fiscal years, respectively .

Year Ended December 31, 1996

The Company's operations prior to December 1996 were limited to start-up
activities and, as a result, the Company's revenues and expenditures for the
period were not indicative of anticipated revenues which may be attained or
expenditures which may be incurred by the Company in future periods . The
Company did not begin revenue-generating operations until December 1996 . As a
result, any comparison of the year ended December 31, 1997 with the year ended
December 31, 1996 would not be meaningful .



During the year ended December 31, 1996, the Company generated $1,000 in
operating -_ve. .̂nes as a resu't of commencing service during the mont .̂ of
December . '.he Comca :̂ ": had cost of cceratinc r_ ._nues of $0 . ' ., .- .-icr, w ..__ . .
represents primar_' :y fixed costs . _ . . acd_t_zn, t=e Ccmnan.: - . ._ ..__e . . other
coerat-no expenses, incl :d :nc

	

.-_-_at__ . . - . ._ a ..,_-__=at :cn, o : S : . million
in connection. with t..̀e commencement c`_ operations and the build-out of its
network . These expenses consisted primarily of payroll expenses, professional
fees, expenses related to the introduction of initial service and a one-time
write-off of purchased software .

The Company earned interest income in the period of $0 .1 million .

As a result, the Company incurred a net loss in the period of $1 .5
million . This loss is primarily attributable to the expenses incurred in
connection with the initial development of the Company's business .

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's operations require substantial capital investment for the
purchase of telecommunications equipment and the development and installation
of the Company's network . Capital expenditures for the years ended December
31, 1998 and 1997 were $97 .0 million and $22 .6 million, respectively . The
Company expects it will continue to have substantial capital requirements in
connection with the purchase of equipment necessary for continued expansion of
its network footprint in its existing markets, and the development of new
products and services . In addition, the Company is currently evaluating
possible expansion into new markets during 1999 . Management expects capital
expenditures of approximately $40 .0 million for fiscal year 1999, which will
be funded by cash on hand and investments available for sale that were
generated through the private sales of debt and equity securities as well as
through its initial public offering of common stock . In addition, the Company
is currently evaluating financing proposals from vendor and equipment lease
financing companies . should this financing be available on acceptable terms,
the Company may consider accelerating its growth plans and expanding its
product offerings .

From its inception through its initial public offering (IP0), the
Company raised approximately $17 .9 million from private sales of common Stock .

In September 1997, the Company completed a $160 .0 million offering of
Senior Secured Notes and warrants to purchase 862,923 shares of common stock
(after giving effect to certain anti-dilution adjustments) . At the closing of
the sale of the Senior Secured Noces, the Company used approximately $56 .8
million of the net proceeds from the sale of the Senior Secured Notes to
purchase a portfolio of securities that has been pledged as security to cover
the first six interest payments on the Senior Secured Notes . The Company used
approximately $3 .1 million of the net proceeds to pay accounts payable
incurred in connection with the acquisition of equipment . In addition, the .
Company has granted the holders of the Senior Secured Notes a security
interest in a substantial portion of the Company's telecommunications
equipment .

In November 1997 and January 1998, the Company issued an aggregate of
6,571,427 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3 .50 per share
for net proceeds of $21 .6 million . In May 1998, the shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into 3,942,856 shares of common
stock simultaneously with the Company's initial public offering .



The Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 relating to the sale of
common stock >:as declared effect ".,e b ": t . .<_ Seccra ies and Exc-ana_e Commission
or.

	

-. tot a_ __ z,,._1, 00 s arc_ per=_ Sold res "u-t : na _, . net
proceeds to _ . ._ _ ., _a-.,.. __ ,. :_ ._ . . ._____ . . . _ .-. .cnn____cn wit. . _ . ._ _ . .___a_
public c_feri- - � = c .-eComcan_;'s common st-ck, _ . ., . Compare;.' effected a s_ for
ten re'JerSe Stock Split . _ .. aaca_on CO _.'.c stock Split, the Company's
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock were converted into common stock .

The substantial capital investment required to initiate the
Company's services and the funding of the Company's initial operations
has resulted in negative investing and operating cash flow since the
Company's inception . This negative cash flow from operations is a result
of the need to establish the Company's network in anticipation of
connecting revenue-generating customers . The Company expects to continue
recording negative cash flow from operations throughout the 1999 fiscal
year due to continued network expansion activities . There can be no
assurance the Company will attain break-even cash flow from operations
in subsequent periods . Until sufficient cash flow from operations is
generated, the Company will be required to utilize its current and
future capital resources to meet its cash flow requirements and may be
required to issue additional debt and/or equity securities . Based upon
its current business plan, the Company does not expect to require
additional financing ; however, there can be no assurance the Company
will not require additional financing, or as to the availability or the
terms of any such financing . Moreover, the indenture governing the
Senior Secured Notes imposes certain restrictions upon the Company's
ability to incur additional,indebtedness or issue preferred stock .

IMPACT OF YEAR 2000
The Year 2000 issue, commonly referred to as Y2K, is rooted in the
way computer systems have been set up to handle the computation of
dates . In many cases, where a date is used in computer code, a two
digit field has been used to indicate the year, (i .e ., 01/01/98 =
January 1, 1998) . The system assumes that the first two digits in
the year field are "19 ." With the end of the century approaching,
those same systems should reflect 01/01/00 as being "January 1,
2000 ." However, a non-compliant system will read 01/01/00 as
January 1, 1900 .

MGC has been focused on Year 2000 issues since its inception in 1996 .
In recognition of the priority associated with the Year 2000 issue, the
Company has established a Year 2000 Project Team at the corporate level
to lead the Year 2000 effort . Since the Company is young, much of the
hardware and software currently in place was purchased with Y2K readiness



i ..̂ mind . `_^e Company's Y2K plans include a number of phases designed to
evaluate and prepare for read-ness by June 1999 .

. .,. ~Jmtdn'i '-as completed t .- -_ ._ ..__ a . ._ aEsa_s9_.e^= _ : a__
net'dcrr; a_ . .. -nt__ma_l= system e_emen-- a. . ._. ._a5 re~un t . .̂e __nc';a__rr. a . . .. .
testinc _ :vases . '_'.'. .̂e Company's . . . :ssio. .̂ __- :-ca : ccmtcne :zs, _nc :ud:rg the
telecommunications network and systems which execute processes such as
service assurance, access management, service delivery, customer service
and billing, are targeted for Year 2000 compliance by June, 1999 .
Integration testing will continue throughout the remainder of 1999 .
Subject to additional compliance testing, the Company believes that its
essential processes, systems and business functions will be ready for the
1999 to Year 2000 transition .

The Company has received assurance from its significant
vendors including its major telecommunications equipment supplier
that their applications are Year 2000 compliant . Maintenance or
modification costs associated with making changes, if needed, will
be expensed as incurred .

The Company's business relies in part on third parties . The
ability of third parties upon whom the Company relies to adequately
address their Year 2000 issue is outside the Company's control . However,
the Company is coordinating efforts with these parties to minimize the
extent to which its business will be vulnerable to their failure to
remediate their own Year 2000 issues . There can be no assurance that the
systems of the third parties will be modified on a timely basis . The
Company's business, financial condition and results of operations could
be materially adversely affected by the failure of those systems and
applications, licensed to or operated for third parties, or operated by
other parties to properly operate on dates beyond 1999 .

The Company is currently in the process of developing contingency
plans should certain mission critical systems fail as a result of Y2K
issues . The Company is also participating in industry wide efforts to
address Year 2000 issues with the goal of developing contingency plans
addressing not only the Company's issues but also those of the
telecommunications industry as a whole .

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting standards Board ("FASB") issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No . 130, Reporting
Comprehensive Income . SFAS No . 130 requires companies to classify items of
other comprehensive income by their nature in a financial statement and
display the accumulated balance of other comprehensive income separately from
retained earnings and additional paid-in capital in the equity sections of a
statement of financial position and is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997 . The Company has .
adopted SFAS No . 130 for 1998 as reported in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements .

	

-

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No . 131, Disclosure About Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information . SFAS No . 131 establishes additional
standards for segment reporting in financial statements and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997 . The Company currently operates
as one segment .



The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants recently issued
Statement o_° 2CSition ("SOP , ) 99-5, "Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up
Act .vit :es . _3P 95-5 requires start-up _cs_-, as d___ned, tC .,_ expensed as
_ .,____e_ a . .c _s

	

_ .,_ __-anc :a : s . __me-ts

	

-:ears been ...ina-
after Seceab. =_r _J',

	

_ ::.̂e _c - _ ..__-=7t_v excenses a-- start-uo costs as
incurred and -Seaop'__caticn c_' '_C_ 98-5 ..___ -a .e no material impact on the
Company's financial statements .

ITEM 7A .

	

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

All of the Company's long term debt bears fixed interest rates, however,
the fair market value of this debt is sensitive to changes in prevailing
interest rates . The Company runs the risk that market rates will decline and
the required payments will exceed those based on the current market rate . The
Company does not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate changes .

ITEM 8 .

	

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The response to this item is submitted as a separate section of this
Report .

ITEM 9 .

	

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

MGC did not re-elect KPMG LLP (°KPMG") as its independent accountants on
February 6, 1998 . KPMG's report on the Company's financial statements for the
years* ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, did not contain an adverse opinion or
a disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty,
audit scope or accounting principles . The decision to change accountants was
approved by the Company's Board of Directors . During KPMG's engagement with
the Company, there were no disagreements with KPMG on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or
procedure which were not resolved to KPMG's satisfaction . During KPMG's
engagement with the Company, there were no reportable events (as defined in
Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K issued under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended) .

As of February 6, 1998, Arthur Andersen LLP has been retained by the
Company as its principal accountants to audit the Company's financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 . The Company had not
consulted Arthur Andersen LLP prior to its engagement regarding the
application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either
completed or proposed, the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the
Company's financial statements or any matter that was either the subject of a
disagreement with KPMG or a reportable event .



ITEM 11 .

	

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

PART III

ITEM 10 .

	

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

. . ._ _n_ �rmat :cn required b;: this = te-. i s incorporated herein by
reference to the data under the heading

	

E;,ECTIO .d OF DIRECTORS" in the Proxy
Statement to be used in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the
Company's annual meeting of Stockholders to be held May 21, 1999, which Proxy
Statement is to be filed with the Commission .

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by
reference to the data under the heading "EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION" in the Proxy
Statement to be used in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the
Company's annual meeting of Stockholders to be held May 21, 1999, which Proxy
Statement is to be filed with the Commission .

ITEM 12 .

	

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by
reference to the data under the heading "STOCK OWNERSHIP" in the Proxy
Statement to be used in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the
Company's annual meeting of Stockholders to be held May 21, 1999, which Proxy
Statement is to be filed with the Commission .

ITEM 13 .

	

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by
reference to the data under the heading "CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS" in the Proxy
Statement to be used in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the
Company's annual meeting of Stockholders to be held may 21, 1999, which Proxy
Statement is to be filed with the Commission .



PART IV

ITEM 14 . EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The response to this portion c-` Item 14 is submitted as a
separate section of this report .

2 .

	

The response to this portion of Item 14 is submitted as a
separate section of this report .

3 .

	

Filing of Exhibits :
Exhibit 10 .24 - First Amendment to Lease with Cheyenne

Investments LLC
Exhibit 10 .25 - Second Amendment to Lease with Cheyenne

Investments LLC
Exhibit 21 - Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Exhibit 23 .1 - Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP
Exhibit 23 .2 - Consent of KPMG LLP
Exhibit 27 - Financial Data Schedule

(b) The Registrant did not file any current report on Form 8-K for the
fourth quarter 1998 .

(c) The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by
reference as indicated . Exhibit numbers refer to Item 601 of Regulation S-K .

Exhibit No . and Description

3 .1

	

Articles of Incorporation. and Amendments . (1)
3 .2 By-laws .(1)
3 .3

	

Stockholders Agreement dated as of November 26, 1997, among the
Company, Maurice J . Gallagher, Jr ., Nield J . Montgomery and certain
investors identified therein . (1)

4 .1

	

See the Articles of Incorporation and amendments filed as Exhibit
3 .1, the By-laws filed as Exhibit 3 .2 and the Stockholders
Agreement filed as Exhibit 3 .3 .

4 .2

	

Certificate of MGC Communications, Inc . of the Rights, Preferences,
Privileges and Restrictions of Series A Preferred Stock . (1)

4 .3

	

Indenture dated as of September 29, 1997, between the Company and
Marine Midland Bank, as Trustee . (1)

4 .4

	

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of September 29, 1997, among
the Company, Bear, Stearns & Co . Inc . and Furman Selz LLC . (1)

4 .5

	

Security Agreement dated as of September 29, 1997, between the
Company and Marine Midland Bank . (1)

4 .6

	

Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of September 29,
1997, between the Company and Marine Midland Bank . (1)

10 .1

	

Network Products Purchase Agreement dated May 21, 1997, between the
Company and Northern Telecom, Inc . (1) The Commission has granted
confidential treatment with respect to certain portions of this
Agreement .

10 .2

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated as of June 1996 between
the Company and Nield J . Montgomery, as amended as of September 1,
1997 .(1) (3)

10 .3

	

Employment and Stock Repurchase Agreement dated May 28, 1997,
between the Company and John Boersma . (1) (3)

10 .4

	

Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 29, 1997, between the Company
Mitchell Allee . (3)

10 .5

	

_

	

Stock Option Plan . (1) (3)
10 .6

	

Purchase Agreement dated September 24, 1997, among the Company,
Bear, Stearns & Co . Inc . and Furman Selz LLC . (1)



10 .7

	

Warrant Agreement dated Septem-er 29, -99", between the company and
Marine Midland Bank . (1)

1C . . .

	

Warrant Registration Rights - reement ..aced as c'- September 29,
':597, among the Company, Sear, Stearns & Co . _ . . .. . and Furman Selz
:,LC . (':)

10 .9

	

ivate Placement Bank Escrow agreement dated September 1997 among
the Company, Bear, Stearns & Co . Inc . and certain investors
identified therein . (1)

10 .10

	

Standard Office Lease Agreement dated July 1, 1997, between the
Company and Cheyenne Investments L .L .C . (1)

10 .11

	

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of November 26, 1997, among
the Company and the investors identified therein . (1)

10 .12

	

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of January 8, 1998, among
the Company and the investors identified therein . (2)

10 .13

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20, 1998 between
Michael Hurke and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .14

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20, 1998 between
David Clark and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .15

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20, 1998 between
Kent Heyman and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .16

	

Employment /Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 9,

	

1998 between
James J . Hurley III and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .17

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20, 1998 between
Thomas Keough and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .18

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated February 16, 1998
between James D . Mitchell and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .19

	

Employment/ Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20,

	

198 between
Carol Mittwede and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .20

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20,

	

1998 between
Mark Peterson and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .21

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20,

	

1998 between
David Rahm and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .22

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated February 11, 1998
between Walter Rusak and the Company . (1)(3)

10 .23

	

Employment/Stock Repurchase Agreement dated March 20, 1998 between
Linda M . Sunbury and the company . (1)(3)

10 .24

	

First Amendment to lease dated May 1, 1998 between Cheyenne
Investments, LLC and the Company .

10 .25

	

Second Amendment to Lease dated December 29, 1998 between Cheyenne
Investments, LLC and the Company .

21

	

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23 .1

	

Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP
23 .2

	

Consent of KPMG LLP
27

	

Financial Data Schedule

(1)

	

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on
Form S-4 (File No . 333-38875) previously filed with the Commission .

(2)

(3)

Exhibit No . and Description

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File #333-49085) previously filed with the Commission .
Management contract or compensation plan or agreement required to be
filed as an Exhibit to this Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Item 14 (C)
of Form 10-K .

All schedules have been omitted as they are not required under the
related instructions, are inapplicable, or because the information
required is included in the consolidated financial statements or related
notes thereto .
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Exchange Act o_' 1934, the Registrant has

	

caused this Report to be signed
or. its be a : : _ the undersigned, t ::ere .:-t- dul; a_t'. .̂orized .

MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC .

By /s/ Nield J . Montgomery
Nield J . Montgomery, President and
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David Kronfeld, Director

	

March , 1999
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March , 1999
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/s/ Nield J . Montgomery March 23, 1999
Nield J . Montgomery, President (chief
Executive Officer) and Director

/s/ Linda M . Sunbury March 23, 1999
Linda M . Sunbury, Vice President (Chief
Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

/s/ Maurice J . Gallagher, Jr . March 23, 1999
Maurice J . Gallagher, Jr . Director
(Chairman of the Board)

/s/ Timothy P . Flynn March 23, 1999
Timothy P . Flynn, Director

/s/ Jack L . Hancock March 23, 1999
Jack L . Hancock, Director



Exhibit 21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiaries o°_ MGC Communicanions, in : . are as fz!!Dws :

MGC _ease Corporation, a Nevada Corporation formed February 5, 1998

MGC License Corporation, a Georgia Ccrporation formed November 24, 1998

MGC LJ .Net, Inc . a Nevada Corporation formed January 22, 1999



<SEQLctiCE> :

<TEXT>

<TABLE> <S> <C>

<ARTICLE> 5
<MULTIPLIER> 1,000
<CURRENCY> U .S . DOLLARS
<TABLE>
<S> <C>
<PERIOD-TYPE> Year
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> DEC-31-1998
<PERIOD-START> JAN-01-1998
<PERIOD-END> DEC-31-1998
<EXCHANGE RATE> 1
<CASH> 11,886
<SECURITIES> 112,442
<RECEIVABLES> 6,466
<ALLOWANCES> (257)
<INVENTORY> 0
<CURRENT-ASSETS> 49,102
<PP&E> 122,935
<DEPRECIATION> (6,555)
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 252,119
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 31,896
<BONDS> 156,693
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY> 0
<PREFERRED> 0
<COMMON> 17
<OTHER-SE> 63,243
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY> 252,119
<SALES> 18,249
<TOTAL-REVENUES> 18,249
<CGS> 17,129
<TOTAL-COSTS> 40,244
<OTHER-EXPENSES> 0
<LOSS-PROVISION> 0
<INTEREST-EXPENSE> 19,064
<INCOME-PRETAX> (32,065)
<INCOME-TAX> 0
<INCOME-CONTINUING> (32,065)
<DISCONTINUED> 0
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0
<CHANGES> 0

r_<NET-INCOME> (32,065)
<EPS-PRIMARY> (2 .26)
<EPS-DILUTED> (2 .26)
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TO t._c =
Hoard c_ -
MGC

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 2, 1999

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT P:'3LIC ACCOUNTANTS

We have audited the accompan':ing consolidated balance sheets c`_ MGC Communications,
Inc . (a Nevada corporation) and subsidiary (the "Ccmpany") as of December 31, 1998
and 1997, and the related consolidated statements of operations, redeemable preferred
stock and stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended . These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management . Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits .

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards .
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement .
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements . An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation . We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion .

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of MGC Communications, Inc . and subsidiary
as of December 31 1998 and 1997, and the resul .̀s of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles .

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP



MGC .. .,~... . .- . ._~a=__ s _ ._ .

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We ha -;e

	

-_-__m_nts := cpera=-o-s, ____-_lders' equity and
cash flows of MGC Communications, ~_nc . - cr _ . ._ near ended Dece^icer 31, 1996 . These
financial statements are the responsibil= : of t-e Comoany's management . Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit .

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards .
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasorable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement .
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements . An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation . We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion .

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the results of operations and the cash flows of MGC
Communications, Inc . for the year ended December 31, 1996, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles .

Las Vegas, Nevada
August 18, 1997

/S/ KPMG LLP



NGC COWUNICATIONS, INC .

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

ASSETS

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements .

December 31,
1998

	

1997

Current assets :
Cash and Cash ec.:_va3ents $ 11,686 $ 45,054
Investments held-to-maturity -- 7,797
Investments available-for-sale 9,851 --
Restricted investments 20,797 18,482
Accounts receivable, less allowance fcr doubtful

accounts of $257 and $216 at December 31, 1998 and
1997, respectively 6,360 1,200

Prepaid expenses 208 277
Total current assets 49,102 72,810

Property and equipment, net 116,380 24,617
Investments held-to-maturity -- 49,913
Investments available-for-sale 63,212 --
Restricted investments 18,582 39,092
Deferred _financing costs, net o°_ accumulated amortization
of $1,065 and $198 as of December 31, 1996 and 1997, respectively 4,714 5,448
Other assets 129 97

Total assets 5252 .'" o <'91 .977

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK
AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities :
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 332 $ 381
Accounts payable :

Trade 5,314 462
Property and equipment 18,577 3,123

Accrued interest 5,200 5,328
Accrued other expenses 2 .473 786

Total current liabilities 31,896 10,060
Senior Secured Notes, net of unamortized discount of

$3,307 and $3,882 at December 31, 1998 and 1997,
respectively 156,693 156,116

Other long-term debt 270 138
Total liabilities 188 .859 10`6,336

Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable preferred stock :

86 Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, 6,571,450
shares authorized, 5, -_,a,57t :ss .:ed and ou ;staadinc
at Cecember -, , ':99^ -- 16,665

Stockholders' equity :
Preferred stock, ;3, ;28,5=C stares eut :-.cr_ ._c but
unissued -- --

Common stock, $0 .001 oar value, 60,000,000 s::ares
authorized, 17,190,420 and 8,799,600 stares issued
and outstanding 17 9

Additional paid-in capital 108,991 22,118
Accumulated deficit (44 .392 ) (12 .463 )

64,616 9,664
Accumulated other comprehensive income 817 --
Notes receivable from stockholders for issuance of
common stock (2 .173 ) (688 )

Total stockholders' equity 63 .260 8 .976
Total liabilities, redeemable preferred stock and

stockholders' ecc:ity 5252 .119 $19'. .977
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MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)_

Year Ended December 31 .
1998 '997 1996

See accompanying notes to consolida=ed ffinancial statements .

v2os= __ otera=v .-.c re:~e .-.ues
,ext_ .:d-nc n crec-at .or.', _',129 3,926 30S

Sell-no, General and anm :nistra : :ve _7,877 6,440 841
Depreciation and amortization 5,238 1,274 54
Write-off of purchased software -- -- 355

2 . . � X42 ~cc
Loss from operations (21,995) (7,851) (1,554)

Other income (expense) :
Gain on sale of investments 223 -- --
Interest income 8,771 2,507 63
Interest expense
(net of amount capitalized) (19 064 ) (5 .492 )

Net loss (32,065) (10,836) (1,491)
Accrued preferred stock dividend -- (136)
Net loss applicable to common
stockholders 5 !32 .055 ) 5 X10 .972 ) 5 0 .491 )
Basic and diluted less per
share of common stock L=__1226 ) L__"1_U) 5___f2 .I1 )

Basic and diluted weighted average
shares outstanding 14 .178 .729 8 .458 .991 707 .359



MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

REDEEMABLE:

See accompanying notes to
consolidated financial statements .

NOTES
RECEIVABLE FROM

	

AC( 11MOI.A'I'Fll1
PREFERRED SI'OCY.

___

SHARES AMOUNT
- -----

COMMON
-------------

SHARES
----------

STOCK
_ . -_

AMOUNT
- ---

ADDITIONAL
PAID-IN

CAPITAL
----------

ACCUMULATNII
DEFICIT

STOCKHOLDERS FOR
ISSUANCE OF

COMMON STOCK

01'11l'<
COMIRIJIF:NlIIVI. :

IIIr'OMP:

9'0TAL
!;I~)I'KHOLUERS'

EQUITY

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 1996 '--. . . . 5 240,000 $- $ 1 $ $ , 1

Common stock issued for services
contributed by stockholder 480,000 1 1 - . 2

common stock issued for cash 6,4'56,000 6 12,274 12,280
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ._ ._ _______ _ _____

11 .491)- 11,*

--BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1996 . . . 7,176,000 '1 12,276 (1,491) 10,'792
-Common stock issued for cash . . . 1,458,600 2 4,860 4,862

Common stock issued for notes
receivable . . . . . . .- -. . . . . . 165,000 - 688 (688)

Proceeds from offering allocated
-to warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 3,885 " 3,HH5

Warrants issued for common stork

commitment . . . . . . . - 909 409

Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (10,836) (10, 836)
88 Series A Convertible Preferred

Stock issued for cash . . . . . . . . 5,148,570 16,665 -- -- -

Accrued preferred stock
dividend . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ._ (136) (1'f6)

------- ------

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1997 . . . 5,148,570 16,665 8,799,600 9 22,118 (12,463) (688) e, 916
-- --Common stock issued for cash . . . 100,680 - 774 - 774

Common stock issued for notes

receivable_ . . . 189,000 -- 1,485 _ . (1,485)

Warrants and options exercised
-' -for common stock . . . . . . -- - 133,309 14 -

89 Series A Convertible Preferred

Stock issued for cash . . . . . . . . 1,422,857 4,980 -- -- --
-- '-Accrued preferred stock dividend -- - (654) 1664)
-- -Common stock issued for cash (IPO) 4,025,000 4 62,959 -- 62,963

Conversion of preferred stock to
(6,571,427) (21,645) 3,942,839 4 21,641 790 :2,435common stock . . . . . . . .-- -

Unrealized gain on investments
-Available- for-sale . . . . . . . . . . - '- - HI 1 017

Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
--------

(32 .065)
- ------

132,06'x)

- --
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 1998 $ 11,190,428 $17 $108,991 $144,392) $12, 113) $ 817 $ 63, .'.60



MGC COMMIINICATIONS, INC .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock (IPO)

	

62,963
Net cash provided by financing activities

	

68 .731

	

177 .138
Net (decr°_ase) increase in cash

	

(33,168)

	

37,157

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements .

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 45,054 7 .897
Cash and cash equivalents at the end o_` period L-L'. <_ 45 .05 ; 7 F 7
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing
and financing activities :
Stock issued for services rendered 5 5 S 2
Increase in property and equipment purchases included

in accounts payable -- property and equipment 5 15 .454 5 1 .75 : 37
Notes payable issued for property and equipment S 50 68 5 --
Stock issued for notes receivable 5 : .485 5 688 5 --
warrants issued as consideration in debt offering

capitalized as deferred financing costs S -- S 409 5 --
Other disclosures :
Cash paid for interest net of amounts capitalized S 19 .192 S 154 5 --

Year
1998

Ended December
1997

31 .
1996

Cash f :cws trcm c^era-_
vet loss $ !32, :65) S (10,636) 5( :,491)
Adjustments -_ reccnci':e -_= loss tt net

cash used in operatino acti ":a _es :
Depreciation. and amortization 5,236 .,Z7 ; 54
Gain on sale of investments 223 -- --
Write-off of purchased software -- -- 355
Amortization of debt discount 575 144 --
Amortization of deferred debt financing costs 867 198 --
Stock issued for services rendered -- -- 2
Changes in assets and liabilities :

Increase in accounts receivable, net (5,160) (1,190) (9)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 69 (254) (23)
Increase in other assets (32) (91) (5)
Increase in accounts payable-- trade 4,852 386 76
Increase in accrued expenses 1,695 5 .879 99

Net cash used in operating activities (23 738 ) !'4 .490 ) 1942 )
Cash flows from investing activities :

Purchase of property and equipment ; net of payables (81,597) (20,207) (2,287)
Purchase of investments held-to-maturity -- (57,710) --
Purchase of investments available-for-sale, net (14,759) -- --
Sale (purchase) of restricted investments 18,195 (57,5741

Net cash used in investing activities (78 .161 ) (135 .491 ) (2,287)
Cash flows from financing activities :

Proceeds from issuance of Senior Secured
Notes net of discount cf $4,025 -- 155,974 --

Costs associated .'t^, _ssnance of Senior
Secured tides and "wa'__an-S !133) (5,237) --

Proceeds from issuance o_°^ 3= Series :, convertible
preferred stock, net o f issuance costs 4,980 16,665 --

Proceeds from issuance of warrants -- 3,885 --
Proceeds (payments) on other long term debt, net 133 (164) --

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 768 6,015 11,126



Description of Business

Revenue Recognition

s
MGC COMMUNICATIONS, INC .

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F :!7=2SCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 3 ;, _998

(1)

	

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of MGC Communications, Inc .
(the "Company"), a Nevada corporation, include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, MGC Lease Corporation . All significant inter-company
balances have been eliminated .

The Company was organized on October 16, 1995 as a competitive local exchange
carrier to provide low cost alternative communication services to residential and
small business users through the utilization of Company owned switches and network
architecture leased from incumbent local exchange carriers . During the year ended
December 31, 1998, the Company operated in Las Vegas, Atlanta, Chicago, southern
Florida, and selected suburban areas of southern California including San Diego with
substantially all of its operating revenues being derived from the Las Vegas, Ontario,
and Atlanta operations .

The Company recognizes operating revenues from communication services in the
period the related services are provided . Due to current disputes and pending
arbitration and litigation, the Company has recognized switched access revenues based
on management's best estimate of the probable collections from such revenue . For the
years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, the Company has recognized in operating
revenues switched access revenues of approximately $7,378,000, $730,000 and $0,
respectively . Included in trade accounts receivable in the accompanying balance
sheets as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 are receivables related to switched access of
approximately $3,590,000 and $730,000, respectively .

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers short-term investments with a remaining maturity of three
months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents .

Restricted Investments

Restricted investments consist of U .S . Treasury Notes which are restricted in
that they must be used for the repayment of interest on certain debt and are stated at
amortized cost plus accrued interest . Management designated these investments as
held-to-maturity securities in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No . 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities ." The carrying value of the restricted investments
approximates the fair value .

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred . As of
December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, the Company had expensed advertising costs of
$810,000, $125,000 and $0, respectively .

Investments

-_ Investments classified as available-for-sale at December 31, 1998 were
clasified as held-to-maturity as of December 31, 1997 . During the fourth quarter of
1998, the Company sold investments, previously classified as held-to-maturity, prior
to their maturity date .

	

In accordance with SFAS No . 115, " Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities," the classification of these investments
has been appropriately changed in the accompanying consolidated financial statements .

Available-for-sale securities represent investments principally in commercial
paper and government securities . The commercial paper matures in March of 1999 and



Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried -
f
_ ccs :, p_ss acc-7u1ated depreciation and

amortization . Direct and indirect costs fo_construction are capitalized, and include
$3,175,000 and $188,000 of interest costs related to construction during 1998 and
1997, respectively . Deoreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives beginning in the month an asset is put into service .

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment are as follows :

Deferred Financing Costs

the oo-:ern-,ent securities mature per :od :ca==_ _ ..rough September 30, 2001 . Tte
unamert=led

	

z :s :

	

___ :s

	

.,_

	

t`ese

	

_ .:_e_tme7.ts

	

at

	

December

	

_

	

:998

	

:s

	

apprcx=mate : .:
7t-e

	

St ..'aS'c5 ` Ftr

	

.as - ca=cC_a=cd _ . . '-.a_ :abie-
for-sale sec'_r :t_es ".ras='_,023,001 ..__ z tr.e

	

___. .t_=__at_tn ..,_t . . ., .. .

Buildings

	

40 years
Telecommunications and other switching

equipment

	

5-10 years
Computer hardware and software

	

3-5 years
Office furniture & equipment

	

3-5 years
Leasehold improvements

	

the lesser of the estimated
useful lives or term of lease

Deferred financing costs are amortized to interest expense over the life of the
related financing using the effective interest method .

Income Taxes

The Company has applied the provisions of SFAS No . 109, "Accounting for Income
Taxes," which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
consequences of temporary differences between amounts reported for financial reporting
and income tax purposes . SFAS No . 109 requires recognition of a future tax benefit of
net operating loss carryforwards and certain other temporary differences to the extent
that realization of such benefit is more likely_ than not ; otherwise, a valuation
allowance is applied .

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No . 107, "Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instruments," requires
all entities to disclose the fair value of financial instruments, both assets and
liabilities recognized and not recognized on the balance sheet, for which it is
practicable to estimate fair value . SFAS No . 107 defines fair value of a financial
instrument as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties . At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the carrying value
of all financial instruments (accounts receivable, accounts payable and long-term
debt) approximates fair value due to the short term nature of the instruments or
interest rates, which are comparable with current rates .

Long-Lived Assets

management periodically evaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets,
including property, equipment and intangible assets, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable . To the extent
the estimated future cash inflows attributable to the asset, less estimated future
cash outflows, is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized .
Management believes no material impairment in the value of long-lived assets exists at
December 31, 1998 or 1997 .

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No . 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income ."
SFAS No . 130 requires companies to classify items of other comprehensive income by
their nature in a financial statement and display the accumulated balance of other
comprehensive income separately from retained earnings, and is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1997 . The Company has
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Use of Estimates
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PLAN OF OPERATIONS

Concentration of Suppliers

adopter 5'=.S ":c . 13~ as reflected

	

_ ..- acccmcan.:ing consolidated financial
s :ater.ec=s .

_ . . =_ .-.a .-.= :a_ seat_-e .-.=s a . ._ _s

	

fcr _'_s=a_ _ears beginning
:99' . _ ..^.e C .. . __ .

	

-sera==_ as one

The American Institute of Certified Pub :-c Accountants recently issued Statement
of Position ("SOP") 98-5, "Reporting the Ccsts of Start-Up Activities . ,, SOP 98-5
requires start-up costs, as defined, to be expensed as incurred and is effective for
financial statements for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1998 . The Company
currently expenses all start-up costs as incurred and the application of SOP 98-5 will
have no material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements .

The Company currently leases its transport capacity from a limited number of
suppliers and is dependent upon the availability of collocation space and fiber optic
transmission facilities owned by the suppliers . The Company is currently vulnerable to
the risk of renewing favorable supplier contracts, timeliness of the supplier in
processing the Company's orders for customers and is at risk to regulatory agreements
that govern the rates to be charged to the Company .

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period . Actual results
could differ from these estimates .

Certain reclassifications, which have no effect on net income, have been made
in the prior period financial statements to conform to the current presentation .

In September 1997, the Company completed an offering of 160,000 units consisting
of $160 million of 134 Senior Secured Notes due in 2004 (the "Notes") and warrants to
purchase shares of common stock, as discussed in Note 4 . The Company expects to
continue its expansion and development of services into new markets . The Company
expects to fund its capital requirements through existing resources, debt or equity
financing and internally generated funds .

Management recognizes that the Company must generate additional resources or
consider modifications to its expansion plans . To the extent the Company is unable to
achieve its funding plan, management has contingency plans which include curtailing
capital expenditure activities, reducing infrastructure costs associated with
expansion and development plans and achieving profitable operations as soon as
practicable . However, no assurance can be given that the Company will be successful in
raising additional capital, achieving profitable results, or entering into new
markets .

Management also recognizes that certain risks are inherent to the industry . Such
risks and assumptions include, but are not limited to, the Company's ability to
successfully market its existing and proposed services to current and new customers
in existing and planned markets, successfully develop commercially viable data and
Internet offerings, access markets, install switches and obtain suitable locations
for its switches, negotiate suitable interconnect agreements with the ILECs, obtain
an acceptable level of cooperation from the ILECs, all in a timely manner, at
reasonable cost and on satisfactory terms and conditions, as well as regulatory,
legislative and judicial developments that could materially affect the Company's
future results .
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

(4) DEBT

a . . ._. =

	

tment c .. ..____ _- _ . ._
December 31,

_':998 1997
(In thousands)

5uiidino and property

	

$

	

2,653

	

$ 278
Switching equipment

	

57,045

	

21,621
Leasehold improvements

	

740

	

956
Computer hardware and software

	

2,218

	

1,404
Office equipment and vehicles

	

901

	

300
63,557 24,559

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

	

(6 .555 )

	

17)
57,002 23,242

Switching equipment under construction

	

59 .378

	

1 .375
Net property and equipment

	

$116 .380

	

24 617

Long-term borrowings at December 31, 1998 and 1997 consist of the following :

December 31,
1998 1997

(In thousands)

13% Senior Secured Notes, due October 1, 2004,

maturities of long-term debt for each of the next six years ending December 31,

In September 1997, the Company completed an offering for 160,000 units
consisting of $160 million of 13% Senior Secured Notes due in 2004 and warrants to
purchase 774,720 shares of common stock (collectively the "Offering") .

The Notes bear interest at the rate of 13% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears on April 1 and October 1, commencing April 1, 1998 . As set forth in the
Indenture pursuant to which the Notes were issued the Company is required to hold in a
trust account sufficient funds to provide for payment in full of interest on the Notes
through October 1, 2000 . The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect
approximately $39 .4 million as restricted investments as security for the interest
payments on the Notes . In addition, the Notes are secured by a security interest in
certain telecommunications equipment owned by the Company or-which may be acquired in
the future . As of December 31, 1998, the Notes were secured by a security interest in
telecommunications equipment with a net book value of $85 .3 .

In conjunction with the Offering, the Company engaged an investment-banking firm
that determined a value for each warrant and share of common stock . Consistent with
this determination, the Company has allocated a portion of the Offering proceeds to

net of unamortized discount of $3,307 and $3,882 $156,693 $156,118
10% note payable in monthly installments through
February 1999 225 441

Other 377 78
157,295 156,637

Less current portion (332 ) (381 )
$156 .963 5157 .256

consist of the following :

(In thousands)

1999 $ 332
2000 174
2001 96
2002 --
2003 --
2004 X56 .693

5 :57 .295



the warrants based on a value of $4 .68 per share of common stock less the exercise
price c'_ S . :°,_ per share for the warrant .

- . ._ . - __a . ._= a__ exercisao-e at -

	

-:me , . . .,_ after the ear :ier _ occur of (i)
Oct ..ter

	

the ..a__

	

.

	

a

	

=nance

	

_^
_

	

control

	

ccc_rs .

	

7ne agreement
purs,:ant __

	

- ::.̂e -.,ar--ant-_- ..___ _ss__d _---z--red ananti-dilut :cn ad~lustment if the_preferred -t__ . . _'_____

	

..-_ __ . .c__ . . . .at__

	

price '--as _ . .a . . $5 .00 per share . As
further discussed' _n Note 5,

	

-he Ccmpan... cc-= :eted t:-.e preferred stock, offering for
$3 .50 per share . Accordingly, the warrants issued in connection with the offering were
increased from 774,200 to 862,923 and have been reflected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 . Expenses allocated
to the warrants in connection with the Offering were $141,000 . The warrants expire on
October 1, 2004 .

In conjunction with the Offering, certain persons deposited an aggregate of
$15 .0 million in escrow (the Common Stock Commitment), which funds were to have been
applied to the purchase of shares of Common Stock in the event the Company failed to
sell at least $15 .0 million of preferred stock within a certain period of time . Since
sufficient preferred stock was issued within the time period, the investors received a
return of their funds contributed to escrow . As a commitment fee for the Common Stock
Commitment, the Company issued to all such persons contributing to the escrow funds
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 90,000 shares of Common Stock at $ .02 per share .

The Company has recorded the commitment fee as non-cash consideration in
connection with the Offering . The value of the warrants issued as a commitment fee was
determined based on a value of the Company's common stock at $4 .68 per share less the
exercise price of $ .02 per share for the warrant . All such warrants were exercised in
January and February 1998 .

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, onor after October 1, 2001, at a premium declining to par in 2003, plus accrued andunpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any, through the redemption date as
follows :

Year

	

Percentage

2001

	

106 .50
2002

	

103 .25
2003 and thereafter

	

100 .00

In the event of a sale by the Company prior to October 1, 2000 of its capital
stock in one or more equity offerings, up to a maximum of 358 of the aggregate
principal amount of the Notes originally issued will, at the option of the Company,
be redeemed from the net cash proceeds at a redemption price equal to 1138 of the
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any, to
the redemption date, provided at least 65E of the aggregate principal amount of Notes
originally issued remain outstanding immediately after the occurrence of such
redemption . As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, management has
no intention of redeeming the Notes prior to their stated redemption date .

The indenture contains certain covenants that among other things, limit the
ability of the company and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional
indebtedness and issue preferred stock, pay dividends or make other distributions,
repurchase equity interests or subordinated indebtedness, acquire an aggregate of more
than 20 Switches until consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EHITDA) is positive for two consecutive quarters (with certain
exceptions), engage in sale and lease back transactions, create certain liens, enter
into certain transactions with affiliates, sell assets of the Company or its
restricted subsidiaries, conduct certain lines of business, issue or sell equity
interests of the Company's restricted subsidiaries or enter into certain mergers and
consolidations . As of December 31, 1998, management believes it - is in compliance with
all debt covenants .

In conjunction with the Offering, the authorized capital stock of the Company
was increased to 60,000,000 shares of common stock, $ .001 par value per share, and
50,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $ .001 par value per share .



Common Stock

=n January 1998, the Company filed a registration statement offering to exchange
the Notes fzr 133 Series B Senior Secured votes due 2Jo4 under the securities Act of
1933, as amended . Terms of the 13= Ser es B Sen'cr Secured Notes due 2004 are
substant :a__ . ,. . ._ same as the Notes . The excranae was c ., . .̂summated in March 1998 .

Associated da^ . . the issuance o= the Votes, expenses of SSs,coo_

	

were paid to a
related par= 1__ __-tarter ser-:ices _ ., 1997 .

(5)

	

Redeemable Preferred stock and stockholders' Equity

On December 6, 1996, the Board of Directors approved a four-hundred-for-one
stock split, effected in the form of a stock dividend distributed on December 31, 1996
to shareholders of record as of June 8, 1996 . All share and per share data prevented
in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have been retroactively
restated to give effect to this stock split .

During 1995, in exchange for expending cash to incorporate the Company, a
shareholder received 240,000 shares of $ .001 par value common stock valued at $ .0042
per share . The Company capitalized the value of the issued shares as organization
costs included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
which costs are being amortized over 60 months using the straight-line method .

In April 1996, the Company issued 480,000 shares of $ .001 par value common stock
valued at $ .0042 per share in exchange for services rendered by a stockholder .

During 1996, NevTEL LLC (the "LLC") was formed for the purpose of funding the
development stage of MCC Communications, Inc . In June 1996, the Company and LLC
entered into an agreement whereby LLC would acquire 3,696,000 shares of $ .001 par
value common stock of the Company for $ .83 per share . The agreement called for LLC to
advance funds for operating expenses incurred by the Company (to be applied against
the purchase price of the stock) until the Company produced operating revenues, at
which time the remaining purchase price would be remitted to the Company, the
Company's common stock would be issued to LLC owners and LLC would terminate . The
agreement stipulated that the funds advanced for operating expenses were to be paid
back to LLC if the Company did not generate operating revenue by December 31, 1996 .
The Company began revenue generating activities in December 1996 . The shares were
issued to LLC owners on December 31, 1996, at which time LLC terminated and the
remaining purchase price was owed to the Company . Such amount was transferred to the
Company in February 1997 and is classified as amounts receivable for shares issued at
December 31, 1996 .

In December 1996, the Company offered 4,068,600 shares of $ .001 par value common
stock at $3 .33 per share through a private placement . In connection with this
offering, the Company issued 1,308,600 shares and 2,760,000 shares of $ .001 par value
common stock and received proceeds of $4,362,000 and $9,200,000 during the years ended
December 31, 1997 and ':996, rescectively .

In June 1997, the Company approved agreements with two key members of management
granting them rights to purchase a total of 150,000 shares at $3 .33 per share and
165,000 shares at $4 .17 per share . In both cases, the Company retains the right to
repurchase these shares at their cost in the event of termination of employment for
any reason and has agreed to finance the purchase price of the shares purchased at
$4 .17 per share over a period of three years . During September 1997, the members of
management exercised their rights and the respective aforementioned shares were
issued . The Company received $500,000 for the 150,000 shares issued at $3 .33 per
share . The $688,000 owed to the Company for the 165,000 shares issued at $4 .17 per
share has been classified in the accompanying consolidated statements of redeemable
preferred stock and stockholders' equity as notes receivable from stockholders for
issuance of common stock .

During 1998, the Company issued 100,680 shares of $ .001 par value common stock
at prices ranging from $5 .83 to $8 .33 per share, for total proceeds to the Company of
$774,000 .

During 1998, the Company approved agreements with 11 key members of management
to purchase a total of 189,000 shares of common stock . The purchase price of these



shares ranged from $5 .83 to $8 .33 per share . The $1,485,000 owed to the Company is
classified
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cv the Securities and cxcrange Commission o. .̂ May 11, 1998 . In
connection with the initial public offering of the Company's common stock, the Company
effected a six for ten reverse stock split, which has been reflected in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements . In addition to the reverse stock
split, the Company's 6,571,427 outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (as defined
below) were converted to 3,942,839 shares of the Company's common stock upon
completion of the initial public offering . The conversion of the Preferred Stock has
been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements .

Redeemable Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized the issuance of up to 50,000,000 shares of preferred
stock . In November 1997, the Company designated 6,571,450 shares as 8% Series A
Convertible Preferred stock (the "Preferred Stock") .

In November 1997, the Company completed a private placement offering in which
5,148,570 shares of the Preferred Stock were issued at $3 .50 per share, for total
proceeds to the Company of approximately $16 .7 million, net of expenses .

In January 1998, the Company completed an additional private placement offering
in which 1,422,857 shares of Preferred Stock were issued at $3 .50 per share for total
proceeds to the Company of approximately $5 .0 million, net of expenses . The terms of
the offering were substantially identical to those of the previous preferred stock
offering .

Each share of Preferred Stock was automatically converted into common stock on a
six for ten basis upon the consummation of the Company's IPO . In accordance with the
terms of the Preferred Stock, the accrued dividends were reversed at the time of
conversion .

(6)

	

Stock option Plan

In June 1996, the Company adopted a stock option plan which allows the Board of
Directors to grant incentives to employees in the form of incentive stock options and
non-qualified stock options . As o£ December 31, 1997, the Company had reserved
1,440,000 shares of common stock to be issued under the plan . In March 1998, the Board
of Directors approved an additional 1,200,000 shares of common stock to be issued
under the plan .

In July 1996, the Company filed a registration statement on Form S-8 to register
the reserved shares of the Company's common stock under the MCC Communications, Inc .
Stock Option Plan .

under the plan, substantially all options have been granted to employees at a
price equal to the then-current market price, as estimated by management, and vest
primarily over a 5-year period . All options expire within ten years of the date of
grant .



For options granted during the year ended December 31, 1998, the fair value of
each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions : dividend yield of 0% ; expected option life of
6 .5 years ; and risk free interest rate of 5 .06& and an expected volatility of 80 .58 .

The weighted average fair value of each of the options issued during the years
ended December 31, 1997 and 1996, substantially all of which have been granted at a
price equal to the then current market price as estimated by management, was estimated
to be $4 .03 and $ .92, respectively, using an option pricing model with the following
assumptions : dividend yield of 0% ; expected option life of 6 .5 years ; and risk free
interest rate at December 31, 1997 and 1996 of 5 .06% and 6 .128, respectively .

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at
December 31, 1998 :

The company applied Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No . 25 in
accounting for its plan . No compensation expense was recognized for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 . Had the Company determined compensation cost using
the fair value based method defined in SFAS No . 123, the Company's loss for the years
then ended would have increased by $565,000, $7,000 and $10,000, respectively .

(7)

	

LOSS PER SHARE

SFAS No . 128, "Earnings Per Share," requires the Company to calculate its
earnings per share based on basic and diluted earnings per share, as defined . Basic
and diluted loss per share for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 were
computed by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock .

The Company's warrants, preferred stock and stock options granted and issued
during 1998, 1997 and 1996, and outstanding as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, are
antidilutive and have been excluded from the diluted loss per share calculation for
the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 . Had the Company shown the effects of
dilution, the warrants, preferred stock and options would have added an additional 1 .8

Stock option transactions during 1998, 1997 and 1996 are as follows :
"

Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Outstand:=c at _- _-
Granted 811,860 $1 .35
Canceled (30 .000 ) $1 .67
Outstanding at December 31, 1996 781,860 $1 .35
Granted 274,560 $5 .78
Canceled X3 .300 1 $S .08
Outstanding at December 31, 1997 1,053,120 $2 .50
Granted 865,700 $8 .48
Exercised (7,380) $1 .77
Canceled (85 .240 ) $5 .84
Outstanding at December 31, 1998 1 .82 6200 $5 .18

Exercisable at December 31, 1996 11 .760 $3 .33
Exercisable at December 31, 1997 165,720 $1 .47
Exercisable at December 31, 1998 378, 660 $2 .07

Range of
Exercise
Price

Number
Outstanding

at
Dec . 31,

19

Weighted
Average
Remaining

Contractual
Life

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Number
Exercisable

at
Dec . 31,

1998

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$0 .83 to $3 .50 745,980 7 .36 ":°nrs $1 .33 320,400 $1 .37
$5 .00 to $6 .50 488,920 6 .97 years $5 .99 56,760 $5 .84
$7 .50 to $10 .00 496,800 9 .58 years $8 .45 1,500 $8 .33
$12 .50 to $17 .00 94 .500 9 .44 years $14 .10 -- $ --
$0 .83 to $17 .00 1 .826,2.00 8 .51 years $5 .18 378 .660 $2 .07
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INCOME TAXES
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1998 1997

SFAS No . 109 requires recognition of the future tax benefit of these assets to
the extent realization of such benefits is more likely than not ; otherwise, a
valuation allowance is applied . At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the Company determined
that $15,517,000 and $4,309,000, respectively, of tax benefits did not meet the
realization criteria because of the Company's historical operating results .
Accordingly, a valuation allowance was applied to reserve against the applicable
deferred tax asset .

At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the Company had net operating loss
carry-forwards available for income tax purposes of approximately $50,869,000 and
$12,940,000, respectively, which expire principally from 2011 to 2018 .

(9)

	

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Obligations

The Company has entered into various leasing agreements for its switching
facilities, offices, and office equipment . The facility which houses the Company's
headquarters in Las Vegas is owned by an entity principally owned by two of the
Company's principal stockholders and directors . Management believes the terms and
conditions of this agreement are equal to the terms which would be available from an
unaffiliated lessor .

Future minimum lease obligations in effect as of December 31, 1998 are as follows (in
thousands) :

Rent expense was $850,000, $207,000 and $33,000 for the years ended December 31,
1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, of which $614,000 was paid to a related party

-during 1998 .

Purchase Commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into purchase agreements
with its vendors of telecommunications equipment . As of December 31, 1998, the company
had a total for all vendors of approximately $15 .4 million of remaining purchase
commitments for purchases of switching equipment .

Deferred Tax Asset
Net operating loss carry-forward
Start-up expenditures
Other

Less : valuation allowance

$17,804
164
534

18,502
(15 .517 )

$ 4,529
220
141

4,890
(4 .309 )

Net deferred tax asset 2 .985 581
Deferred Tax Liability

Excess of tax depreciation over book 2,769 481
Other 216 100
Net deferred tax liability 2 .985 581

Net S -- S --

Payments during the year ending December 31 :
1999 $ 1,389
2000 1,272
2001 1,166
2002 977
2003 159
Thereafter 342

$5,305



Litigation

Interconnection Agreements

-he ~cmran-: _-

outcome c : :__ . . -_ ..teed=nos .+
~financial c :_=_ �nor res,ats of

The Company has interconnection agreements with five incumbent local exchange
carriers . These agreements expire on various dates through July 2000 .

The Company is dependent on the cooperation of the incumbent local exchange
carriers to provide access service for the origination and termination of its local
and long distance traffic . Historically, these access charges can make up a
significant percentage of the overall cost of providing these services . To the extent
the access services of the local exchange carriers are used, the Company and its
customers are subject to the quality of service, equipment failures and service
interruptions of the local exchange carriers .

(10) RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain rates in the interconnection agreements have been established by the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and are subject to adjustment upon final
negotiations . The Company has recorded costs of sales related to the Sprint (Nevada)
interconnection agreement at amounts which are management's best estimates of the
probable outcome of the final negotiated rates, which are less than the FCC
established rates . The difference, which totals approximately $1 .7 million and $1 .1
million at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, has not been recorded in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements . Management believes that the
resolution of this matter will not have an adverse effect on the Company's
consolidated financial position, results of operations, or liquidity .

(11) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
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In May 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with a company, the owner of
which is a former officer and current stockholder of the Company, for the purchase of
certain computer software pursuant to which the Company paid the contract price of
$600,000 in six equal monthly installments beginning July 1, 1997 . In addition, the
Company has paid $656,000 and $40,000 during 1998 and 1997, respectively, under such
agreement to support and maintain the Company's proprietary management information
computer system . Management believes the terms and conditions of this agreement are
equal to the terms which would be available from an unaffiliated party .


